# CIF-SS BULLETIN







VOL. 80, NO. 2 WINTER 2017-2018









For Full CIF-SS Fall Playoff Results

See pages 7-13

Serving High School Athletics Since 1913

# CIF-SS COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES October 3, 2017

#### **1.OPENING BUSINESS**

- A. Call to order by Carter Paysinger, President of the Council 9:07 a.m.
  - B. Pledge of Allegiance
  - C. Roll Call
- D. Introduction of Guests Steve Fryer OC Register, Bobbi Madsen - State CIF Office, CiCi Robinson - State CIF Office
  - E. Adopt Agenda
- 1. It was moved and seconded to adopt the agenda as written. MOTION PASSED (81-0-4)
- F. Approval of Minutes
- 1. Minutes of the April 5, 2017 Council Meeting. It was moved and seconded to accept the minutes of the April 5, 2017 Council Meeting. MOTION PASSED (85-0-0)

#### 2. PUBLIC HEARING SESSION

A. Recognition of anyone wishing to address the Council. Justin Peterson of Huddle Tickets / GoFan Digital Tickets made a presentation of his company's online ticket sales program. Each Southern Section school should be receiving an emailed offer from Huddle regarding free tickets for all school events. Huddle is now the official agency to be used for CIF-SS online ticket sales due to a new partnership with the CIF-SS. The company will set up and create a custom ticket page if schools elect to use the service and Huddle Tickets can be used for not only athletics, but all school events.

#### 3. ACTION ITEMS

# A. STATE FEDERATED COUNCIL ACTION ITEMS

- 1. Enacting of Bylaw 1108 Delegated Powers -Hurricane Harvey There was a motion and a second to approve. No discussion. An athletic eligibility waiver for students displaced by Hurricane Harvey who wish to transfer to a California school; An eligibility waiver is extraordinary and applies to students displaced by Hurricane Harvey ONLY. MOTION PASSED (83-0-2)
- 2. Proposed Revision Bylaw 207.B.(5) Sit Out Period There was a motion and a second to approve. This revision would create equal Sit-Out Periods for all sports and the Sit-Out period would be equal to 50% of the number of days in the sport's season. If that season has an odd number of days then the Sit-Out Period would be 50% plus one additional day. Discussion: If schools play a Zero Week contest, will the date be adjusted? Potential to miss 6 games due to current league set up. 50% of the days of the season of sport will be used, regardless of when first game is played. No relief to adjust for schools who choose to play a Zero Week game. The same situation that is current with schools choosing to play a Zero Week games will still exist with this new proposal. MOTION PASSED
- 3. Proposed Revision Bylaw 2006.B There was a motion and a second to approve. Discussion: None. During the CIF State Regional and CIF State Championship Football Games the 25-yard tie-breaker system will be used. Other CIF sections have an option of the 10-yard or 25-yard system during their section playoffs. The Southern Section currently uses the 25-yard tie-breaker system. MOTION PASSED (77-3-5)
- B. SOUTHERN SECTION ACTION ITEMS

- 1. Releaguing Plans There was a motion and a second to approve the recently finalized area re-leaguing plans. Discussion: Was the Orange County area plan included in the packet? Yes, the full plan must be approved before appeals can be heard. MOTION PASSED (82-0-3)
- A. Releaguing Appeals Orange County Area
- 1. Laguna Beach High School Laguna Beach High School requested to be moved from the Sunset League to the Pacific Coast League. Lance Neal, Athletic Director at LBHS: Opening comments related to the process and that the process was perfect. Lance then commented that the school's placement within the Sunset League was incorrect based on competitive equity and an imbalance between his school and the other member school within the Sunset League. They had asked the Orange County re-leaguing group for a change from the Orange Coast League due to the school success within that current league realizing that they did need to step up in the level of competition. Lance showed results of teams' performances compared to results v. the Sunset League teams. Lance showed results v. Pacific Coast league teams and how they were a better fit with programs and number of teams offered. Mike Brennan, Principal at Servite and the Orange County Releaguing Chair: Principal Brennan gave specific details on how the Releaguing process started in February and finished in May. He detailed how the Orange County Area developed its policies and procedures and that their

procedures were followed for each meeting and each Releaguing vote. He specifically noted that any Releaguing plan would need a 60% majority to be approved. He also noted that the Orange County Area principals voted to approve a twoyear Releaguing Cycle, beginning with the 2018 school year. The two-year Releaguing Cycle plan passed by a 75-0-0 vote. Mr. Brennan then detailed that no proposal reached the required 60% majority, therefore a caucus was needed to review the two proposals that received the largest number of votes to determine if a compromise could be reached. Proposals #6 and #7 were the two that were examined and after another vote was held proposal, #7 passed with the required 60% majority. Proposal #7 had placed Laguna Beach High School into the Sunset League. Chris Krebs, Principal at Woodbridge High School and Pacific Coast League Rep: He is asking for a "no" vote to the LBHS request to move to the Pacific Coast League and out of the Sunset League. He requested a "no" vote based on the simple fact that the Orange County Releaguing Plan that was approved today represents the majority of schools in Orange County and that the process was followed. Kevin Fairman, Marina HS, Sunset League Rep, addressed the Council and asked the Council to vote "no" on the LBHS appeal. He cautioned that if Laguna Beach were allowed to leave, this would cause a ripple effect to his school and the rest of the Sunset League.

(See COUNCIL MINUTES on next page)

# California Interscholastic Federation Southern Section

10932 Pine Street Los Alamitos, CA 90720 (562) 493-9500 \* FAX (562) 493-6266

## **OFFICERS**

Carter Paysinger, Consultant Las Virgenes USD, President-Elect

Dr. Monica Colunga, Principal Irvine HS, President-Elect

Jim Monico. Liaison Dir. of Athletics Paramount USD, Past-President

Jeff Jordan, Director Educational Services Walnut Valley USD, Treasurer

Rob Wigod, Commissioner of Athletics

## **BULLETIN EDITOR**

Thom Simmons, Assistant Commissioner

## **EDITORIAL ASSISTANT**

Anita Fopma, CIF-SS Program Coordinator

Photos provided by Heston Quan Bulletin published three times yearly by CIF Southern Section

# **COUNCIL MINUTES**

(Continued from previous page)

Part of the Orange County Plan is to create a Football-Only league, including Laguna Beach and Marina, and if Laguna Beach is removed the Football- Only league would dissolve. Jerry Halpin, Principal, Brea Olinda HS: called for a motion to move Laguna Beach HS from the Sunset League to the Pacific Coast League. The motion received a second and call for a vote. MOTION FAILED (10-54-22).

FAILED (10-54-22). 2. Laguna Hills High School - Bill Hinds, Principal Laguna Hills: Opened his statement with rationale on why Laguna Hills High School does not belong in the Coast View Athletic Association and they wish to be placed into the Pacific Coast League. The appeal is based on decreasing enrollment and competitive equity. Mr. Hinds stated that they have been a member of the CVAA for the past 7½ years and that his programs are at the bottom of the conference across the board. He finished with a review of declining enrollment as compared to other conference member schools from both the Saddleback Valley Unified School District and the Capistrano Valley Unified School District. Mike Brennan, Principal Servite HS, Orange County Re-Leaguing Chair: Addressed the Council and reviewed the process once again providing the same information as he presented during the Laguna Beach High School appeal. Chris Carter, Principal San Clemente, South Coast League Rep: Requested the Council vote "no" on the LHHS appeal since this would leave the CVAA as a nine-member body. This would create disruption in the conference and an imbalance between the two leagues that make up the CVAA. He also asked that the Council support the Orange County Releaguing Plan that was completed through a very lengthy process. Craig Collins, Principal Trabuco Hills, Sea View League Rep: Asked the council to vote "no" on the proposal by LHHS. He provided the Council with a basic structure of the CVAA and that they have a process that allows relief to LHHS with the 10-member conference. CVAA uses a two-year cycle to move teams on an individual sport basis. Football would be greatly affected when trying to schedule with our team and five team configurations. Chris Krebs, Principal Woodbridge, Pacific Coast League Rep: Asked that the Council vote "no" on the proposal presented by LHHS. He cautioned the council that the lack of success data presented by LHHS should be reviewed and that the time today (15 minutes) is not enough. Finished with the plea that today's forum is not the time to make this decision when they have already taken four months of work to arrive at the Orange County Releaguing Plan that was approved today. Mark Cunningham, Athletic Director University High School, PCL: Presented data showing the number of league championships won by several members of the CVAA. This data was to rebut the lack of success claim made by Laguna Hills. During the past few years, the number of league championships for LHHS totaled nine while other CVAA members were all comparable. For example; San Juan Hills (8), Dana Hills (10) and Capistrano Valley (14). Call for a motion from the floor to move Laguna Hills High School from the Coast View Athletic Association to the Pacific Coast League in all sports. Motion received a second. MOTION FAILED (12-52-22)

3. Proposed Revision Bylaw 208.A(4) Foreign Exchange Student Host Family - The current rule does not allow students who are part of an approved foreign exchange program to participate in any level of a sport if they are hosted by a coach at the school of attendance. This revision would allow participation at the junior varsity or freshman level in such a case. MOTION PASSED (42-39-5)

#### A. STATE FEDERATED COUNCIL NON-ACTION ITEMS

- 1. Revision to Bylaw 103 Weighted Voting Southern Section will see an increase from 36 votes to 38 votes.
- 2. Proposed Revision to Bylaw 207 Transfer Eligibility, International Students Motion is to remove the SOP transfer application from foreign students who do not arrive at the new school as part of an approved Foreign Exchange program. These students (international students) would then need to apply under one of the following applications: Valid Change of Residence, Non-Participation or Limited eligibility.
- 3. Proposed Elimination of Bylaw 1605 Basketball Coaching Box Proposal calls for the deletion of the language in the CIF Bylaws regarding the basketball coaching box. This rule is already addressed in the NFHS Basketball Rule Book and placing it in the bylaws is redundant.
- B. SOUTHERN SECTION NON-ACTION ITEMS
- 1. Proposed Revision to 2018-2019 Sports Calendar –Baseball/Softball This revision would change the start and end dates for the sports of girls' tennis, baseball, softball and boys' volleyball to better fit the calendar for all other sports beginning in 2018-2019.
- 2. Proposed Revision to 21-Day Summer Dead Period - Proposal allows for a more flexible Dead Period which moves the current starting date from the first Friday in June to the last Friday in May.

## **5.REPORTS**

A. Treasurer's Report - Jeff Jordan - Mr. Jordan noted that 2016-17 showed a net profit of \$103,000+. The audit for that year was just recently completed. At the end of the first quarter, income was at \$82,000+. Some 92% of schools have paid their dues and 8% (42 schools) have yet to do so.

B. President's Report - Carter Paysinger - Mr. Carter reminded schools that they have a wonderful opportunity to influence students with their coaching staffs. Coaches should be counseled on how to deal with any situation that is presented to them from students who wish express concern, influence change and help them understand that all people should have their own opinion and that the field/court/etc. should be an acceptable place for all.

C. Commissioner's Report - Rob Wigod - Mr. Wigod first thanked the members of the Southern Section staff and asked all to stand and be recognized. He went on to introduced to the Council the #PACKTHEHOUSE campaign in order to increase attendance at playoff events.

#### 6. ADVANCE PLANNING

#### A. DATES

- 1. October 16, 2017 Athletic Administrators Summit, Pomona Fairplex Sheraton Hotel and Conference Center, Pomona, California, 7:30 a.m.
  - 2. October 18, 2017 CIF Southern Section

Hall of Fame/Distinguished Service Luncheon, The Grand, Long Beach, California, 12:00 p.m.

- 3. January 13, 2017 CIF Southern Section Executive Committee Meeting, Mission Inn, Riverside, California, 9:30 a.m.
- 4. January 24, 2017 CIF Southern Section Council Meeting, The Grand, Long Beach, California, 9:00 a.m.

## 7. ADJOURNMENT

A. Time of Adjournment: 11:28 am

Submitted by: Mike Middlebrook Assistant Commissioner

Approved by: Rob Wigod Commissioner of Athletics

# MINUTES OF THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING August 17, 2017

#### 1. OPENING BUSINESS

A. Call to order by Carter Paysinger, President of the Council - The meeting was called to order at 12:07 p.m. Carter Paysinger welcomed everyone back from a short summer and hoped everyone had a relaxing time.

B. Pledge of Allegiance

C. Roll Call - All members were present, except Rita Dever, Geniel Moon, and Mike West.

D. Introduction of Guests - There were no guests present. Those present for the Releaguing Appeals would introduce themselves at the appropriate time.

E. Adopt Agenda

Carter Paysinger made a motion to move Item 5A to before Item 1F of the agenda in order to approve the appointment of one member of the Executive Committee. It was moved and seconded to adopt the revised agenda 16-0-0. Carter Paysinger asked for a vote to appoint the following Executive Committee position: At-Large Representative – Dana Wilkerson – It was moved and seconded to approve Dana Wilkerson as At-Large Representative to the Executive Committee for a term of two years. The motion carried 16-0-0.

F. Approval of Minutes - There was a motion and a second to approve the minutes of the May 10, 2017 Executive Committee meeting. The minutes were approved 16-0-1.

#### 2. PUBLIC COMMENT

A. Recognition of anyone wishing to address the Executive Committee. Speakers must limit their remarks to three minutes. Mr. Gary Rowe, parent of a student at Golden Valley High School, addressed the Executive Committee regarding the eligibility of his student.

#### 3. ACTION ITEMS

A. STATE FEDERATED COUNCIL ACTION ITEMS

1. Proposed Revision Bylaw 207.B.(5) – Sit Out Period - Monica Colunga reviewed the proposal to change the Sit-Out Period from a specific date in each season of sport to a percentage of each season of sport. There was a motion and second to approve. Carter Paysinger clarified the Eit-Out Period for the Southern Section would be 50% of the regular season. If the regular season has an odd number of days, the Sit-Out Period would be 50% of the regular season plus one day. The motion carried 17-0-0.

2. Proposed Revision Bylaw 1906.B – Football Tie-Breaker Period - Monica Colunga reviewed the proposal to remove the 10-yard football tie-breaker from the CIF Constitution and Bylaws. There was a motion and a second. Jim Monico asked Rob Wigod to clarify if this is mandating the 25-yard tie-breaker be used or does this proposal give sections an option. Rob Wigod stated that this proposal takes away the language mandating the 10-yard tie-breaker, giving the sections the option of something different. The State will be utilizing the 25-yard tie-breaker for CIF State Regional and CIF State Championships games and the Southern Section will stay with the 25-yard tie-breaker that is already in place. The motion carried 18-0-0.

#### B. SOUTHERN SECTION ACTION ITEMS

Releaguing Appeal Hearings

A. Northern Area

Carter Paysinger reviewed the process and timeline each hearing will follow.

- 1. Agoura High School -Present for the Agoura High School appeal were Brian Mercer, Principal; Garrett Lepisto, Athletic Director; and Dave Hess, Northern Area Releaguing Chair. Releaguing information was presented by Agoura High School. A response was provided by Dave Hess regarding the process followed by the Northern Area in arriving at the 2018-2020 Releaguing Plan approved by that area. There was a motion and a second to accept the appeal. A discussion was held. The motion was not approved and the appeal was not accepted by a vote of 1-15-5.
- 2. Thousand Oaks High School (Football Only) Present for the Thousand Oaks High School appeal were Lou Lichtl, Principal; Gary Walin, Assistant Principal; and Dave Hess, Northern Area Releaguing Chair. Releaguing information was presented by Thousand Oaks High School. A response was provided by Dave Hess regarding the process followed by the Northern Area in arriving at the 2018-2020 Releaguing Plan approved by that area.

There was a motion and a second to accept the appeal. A discussion was held. The motion was approved and the appeal was accepted by a vote of 11-8-2.

3. Westlake High School (Football Only) - Present for the Westlake High School appeal was Jason Branham, Principal; and Dave Hess, Northern Area Releaguing Chair. Releaguing information was presented by Westlake High School. A response was provided by Dave Hess regarding the process followed by the Northern Area in arriving at the 2018-2020 Releaguing Plan approved by that area. There was a motion and a second to accept the appeal. There was a motion and a second to accept the appeal. A discussion was held. The motion was approved and the appeal was accepted by a vote of 13-7-1.

B. Orange County Area

Carter Paysinger reviewed the process and timeline the hearing would follow.

1. Laguna Beach High School - Present for the Laguna Beach High School appeal were Jason Alleman, Principal; Lance Neal, Athletic Director, Mike Brennan, Orange Country Area Releaguing Chair; and Joel Hartmann, Orange County Area Releaguing Coordinator. Releaguing information was presented by Laguna Beach High School. A response was provided by Mike Brennan regarding the process followed by the Orange County Area in arriving at the 2018-2020 Releaguing Plan approved by that area. There was a motion and a second to accept the appeal. A discussion was held. The motion was not approved and the appeal was not accepted by a vote of 0-17-4.

2. Laguna Hills High School - Present for the Laguna Hills High School appeal were Bill Hinds, Principal; Jay Chadwick, Assistant Principal of Athletics; Tim Ellis, Athletic Director; Don Grable, Athletic Director at Corona del Mar High School; Mike Brennan, Orange Country Area Releaguing Chair; and Joel Hartmann, Orange Country Area Releaguing Coordinator. Releaguing information was presented by Laguna Hills High School. A response was provided by Mike Brennan regarding the process followed by the Orange County Area in arriving at the 2018-2020 Releaguing Plan approved by that area. There was a motion and a second to accept the appeal. There was a motion and a second to accept the appeal. A discussion was held. The motion was approved and the appeal was not accepted by a vote of 14-3-4.

The Executive Committee took a break at 2:20 p.m. Carter Paysinger reconvened the meeting at 2:33 p.m.

C. Small Schools Area

Carter Paysinger reviewed the process and timeline the hearing would follow.

- 1. Santa Rosa Academy Present for the Santa Rosa Academy appeal were Nick Stearns, Principal; Dan Torres, Athletic Director; and Mark Edgemon, Small Schools Area Releaguing Chair. Releaguing information was presented by Santa Rosa Academy. A response was provided by Mark Edgemon regarding the process followed by the Small Schools Area in arriving at the 2018-2022 Releaguing Plan approved by that area. There was a motion and a second to accept the appeal. There was a motion and a second to accept the appeal. A discussion was held. The motion was not approved and appeal was not accepted by a vote of 0-21-0.
- 2. Western Christian High School Present for the Western Christian High School appeal were Mike Hargis, Athletic Director; and Mark Edgemon, Small Schools Area Releaguing Chair. Releaguing information was presented by Western Christian High School. A response was provided by Mark Edgemon regarding the process followed by the Small Schools Area in arriving at the 2018-2022 Releaguing Plan approved by that area. There was a motion and a second to accept the appeal. A discussion was held. The motion was not approved and appeal was not accepted by a vote of 0 20 1.

## 4. NON-ACTION ITEMS

A. STATE FEDERATED COUNCIL NON-ACTION ITEMS

There are no State Federated Council Non-Action Items at this time.

- B. SOUTHERN SECTION NON-ACTION ITEMS
- 1. Proposed Revision Bylaw 208.A(4) Foreign Ex-

change Student Host Family. Carter Paysinger reviewed the proposal to allow coaches to host foreign exchange students in their homes and to limit those students to lower level competition for one year. Rob Wigod explained that Wilson High School in Long Beach has a staff member that has hosted foreign exchange students for years. This staff member has been asked to be a coach on campus and Bylaw 208.A(4) clearly states that foreign exchange students cannot reside with a coach at their school. This is a CIF Bylaw, so the proposal would need to be approved by the CIF Southern Section Council prior to submitting it to the CIF Federated Council. It was asked what is the answer if the student is living with a volleyball coach but the student plays soccer? The bylaw states that living with a coach, regardless of the sport, is not allowed. Mike Middlebrook discussed the changes in the F1 visas and J1 visas and stated that open-ended visas are being issued more often.

#### 5. NEW BUSINESS

(5A was moved to the top of Item 3. Action Items)

- A. Appointment of Southern Section Executive Committee At-Large Representative
- B. Financial Report Mitch Carty Mitch Carty distributed a report on the just completed 2016-17 school year and reviewed it with the Executive Committee. The Financial Report is available at the end of these minutes.
- C. Marketing Report Thom Simmons/ Jackie Gibson Thom Simmons distributed a Marketing Report and reviewed it with the Executive Committee. The Marketing Report is available at the end of these minutes. Jackie Gibson gave a presentation on the new electronic version of our championship programs that will be available this school year on our website. Team photos and advertisements will be in color, the program is easy to view on mobile devices as well and is downloadable as a pdf to save or to print. Also, it can be posted on social media and we will receive analytical information regarding views, view time and views by page. Finally, because it will always be on our website, there is added value to the advertisers in our program.

#### 6. OLD BUSINESS

A. 2018-2019 Sports Calendar - Baseball/Softball - Rob Wigod - The last page of your packet contained the vote regarding this issue from the Council meeting. This proposal lost by one vote. Several leagues that voted yes have stated that they would like to bring this proposal back for first read at the CIF Southern Section Council meeting in October. Our administrative staff will be going out to league meetings to find out what the concerns were and what changes would be acceptable to pass this proposal. Dave Reid stated that he agreed with staff heading to meetings. Dick Billingsley echoed the agreement of the staff coming to the leagues. Rob Wigod asked what were the no votes based on with some leagues answering that weather, daylight savings time, etc. were expressed as concerns. Leagues need to see this proposal coming from the schools and leagues, not from the Executive Committee. Chris Calderwood stated that there is sentiment around the Section that the State is dictating what we should do and that some leagues voted no as a protest vote. It was also stated that most proposals that are passed at the State level have come from Southern Section. Carter Paysinger stated that Executive Committee members should talk to their constituents and that he wouldn't want to be one of those coaches whose students are out of school during the playoffs. Rob Wigod said this needs to be introduced in October to be voted on in January, in order to give schools an appropriate time frame to set up schedules.

#### 7. CLOSED SESSION

- A. Public Employee Evaluation of Performance (Government Code 54957):
- 1. CIF Southern Section Goals 2017-2018 The committee went into Closed Session at 3:42 pm.

# 8. REPORT OF ACTION(S) TAKEN IN CLOSED SESSION

The Closed Session ended at 4:05 pm. There was no action taken in Closed Session.

#### 9. REPORTS

A. NFHS Summer Meeting Reports: Carter Paysinger, Monica Colunga, Jim Monico, Rita Dever - Carter Paysinger attended the football breakout session. The NFHS is working to preserve Friday nights for high school football only. There was talk about promoting safety with youth

(See EXECUTIVE on page 6)

# MINUTES OF THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING **September 28, 2017**

A. Call to order by Carter Paysinger, President of the Council - The meeting was called to order at 1:20 p.m. Carter Paysinger welcomed everyone to the second meeting of the year.

B. Pledge of Allegiance

C. Roll Call - All members were present, except Rob Kostopoulos, Dana Wilkerson and Rainer Wulf.

D. Introduction of Guests - There were no guests present. Rob Wigod introduced Geniel Moon to the Executive Committee as the CADA Representative to the CIF State Federated Council. Rob Wigod then asked everyone to go around the room and introduce themselves to Geniel Moon.

E. Adopt Agenda

F. Approval of Minutes - There was a motion and a second to approve the minutes of the August 17, 2017, Executive Committee meeting. The minutes

#### 2. PUBLIC COMMENT

A. Recognition of anyone wishing to address the Executive Committee. Speakers must limit their remarks to three minutes. There was no one present to address the Executive Committee.

#### 3. ACTION ITEMS

A. STATE FEDERATED COUNCIL ACTION ITEMS

1. Enacting of Bylaw 1108 Delegated Powers - Hurricane Harvey - President-Elect Monica Colunga reviewed the bylaw and referred to the agenda packet materials. This bylaw allows the CIF State Executive Director to provide students displaced by Hurricane Harvey immediate eligibility without the ability of obtaining transcripts, similar to the situation that occurred after Hurricanes Matthew and Katrina. Sandy Gahring asked if this step will occur every time a natural disaster happens and Monica Colunga replied yes. It was stated that this may happen again for Hurricanes Irma and Maria. The motion carried 22-0-0.

- Proposed Revision Bylaw 207.B.(5) Sit Out Period Support 17-0-0
   Proposed Revision Bylaw 2006.B Football Tie-Breaker Period Sup-
- nort 18-0-0

#### B. SOUTHERN SECTION ACTION ITEMS

1. Releaguing Plans - Carter Paysinger explained that Releaguing Plans have already been reviewed and approved by each area and that there needs to be a motion to move them to forward to the Southern Section Council. There was a motion and a second to move the Releaguing Plans forward. Jim Perry asked what the appeals procedures were going to be at the Southern Section Council meeting being held next week. Carter Paysinger explained that they would be similar to what took place at the Executive Committee Meeting in August. Rob Wigod indicated that in the Council packet, there is a letter to the schools who are appealing stating what the process will be. Chris Calderwood asked if the appealing schools had to come up with a plan? Rob Wigod replied the appealing schools are required to suggest a solution to their current placement and that information is contained in the Council packet. The Orange County Area did not change their original Releaguing Plan after the Executive Committee August, but the Northern Area did take the recommendations of the Executive Committee and changed their original Releaguing Plan. Jim Perry stated that the only ones who can speak at the Council meeting are the schools who are appealing, one representative from each affected league and the Orange County Area Releaguing Chairperson. The motion carried 22-0-0.

A. Releaguing Appeals - Orange County Area
1. Laguna Beach

- 2. Laguna Hills

2. Proposed Revision Bylaw 208.A(4) – Foreign Exchange Student Host Family - Carter Paysinger reviewed the proposal regarding foreign exchange students, who are part of an approved foreign exchange program, being allowed to live with a family that includes a school coach, with eligibility to play at lower levels only. Motion and second to approve. Motion failed 9-13-0.

#### 4 NON-ACTION ITEMS

#### A. STATE FEDERATED COUNCIL NON-ACTION ITEMS

1. Revision to Bylaw 103 – Weighted Voting - Monica Colunga stated that this is informational only. The Southern Section picked up two additional votes this year. Chris Calderwood asked why the number is not based on the number of schools as the Southern Section would get 42% of the votes since our section has 42% of the schools in the state. Kristine Palle answered that it would give too much power to one section. Rob Wigod added that this is a CIF State Bylaw and that we do have the correct number of votes according to the formula in the bylaw. By formula, the largest section receives double the votes of the next largest section. Dick Billingsley asked if the Los Angeles Section, San Diego Section and Southern Section tend to vote the same and Rob Wigod answered

sometimes yes and sometimes no.
2. Proposed Revision to Bylaw 207 – Transfer Eligibility, International Students - Monica Colunga reviewed the proposal. For international students, there are three ways to become eligible. When the implementation of the SOP, it appeared to overstep the other three possibilities for eligibility for international students, which was not the intent. Rob Wigod referred the committee to page 5 of the proposal, asking them to focus on what is crossed out, which is what is being changed. If an international student is not here on an approved foreign exchange program, valid change of residence or on non-participation, then the proposal states they should not be given the SOP and should have Limited Eligibility. This was a Southern Section rule until 2011, and this proposal would implement this rule state-wide. The Southern Section is proposing this change to the CIF State Federated Council.

3. Proposed Elimination of Bylaw 1605 –Basketball Coaching Box - Monica Colunga reviewed the proposal which is asking to remove this bylaw and defer to the NFHS Rule Book as the bylaw is redundant. Chris Calderwood stated that the bylaw was put in place because the NFHS rule was not being enforced. Jim Perry added that the rule was different from state to state and now it will be the

# ame across the country. B. SOUTHERN SECTION NON-ACTION ITEMS

 Proposed Revision to 2018-2019 Sports Calendar – Baseball/Softball
 Carter Paysinger reviewed the proposal indicating it is being reintroduced by four leagues. Terry Barnum stated that there are concerns from private schools that it is shortening the summer and encroaching on family time. Chris Calderwood asked if this is the same format? Rob Wigod answered ves. Mike West stated that this issue is contentious in his area. There are concerns with the weather in the higher elevations. There is a feeling that the CIF State is telling us what to do and they do not feel a need to change. Jim Perry said this is not a state office thing, it is coming from the other sections. It fits them better than it fits us. Chris Calderwood said it goes back to the frustration amongst the membership that we are being dictated to, in terms of scheduling, by other groups and the issue is being forced on us. The feeling is we are not adequately represented and here is another thing that was working fine for us and now it is being changed for reasons outside of us. Carter Paysinger stated that every sec-

tion can make the same complaint. They wanted to vote out the limits on practice and they have fought it in court, but our voice was heard and we won that argument. When you are in a federation, there is give and take. Monica Colunga added this is not the overwhelming sediment in the Southern Section as many have already made this calendar shift. There are still many who have not shifted but there are many that have. Rob Wigod reminded the Executive Committee that the move of CIF State Football was not a voting item but a game management issue, so it forced us to move our dates. It was a close vote the last time this issue was considered and the section is split, so it is worth another examination. Look at the talking points here and make an informed vote, not just a sentiment or as a protest vote. Mike West asked if there has been feedback from the Baseball Advisory Committee. Glenn Martinez responded that this proposal has received unanimous support from that committee. There had been talk about rain and the impact with more time between winter and spring sports. Rob Wigod added that our staff will be going out to league meetings to discuss this issue and to answer questions.

Proposed Revision to 21-Day Summer Dead Period - Carter Paysinger reviewed the proposal. This is asking to move the start of the summer dead period up one week from the first Friday in June to the last Friday in May, giving schools more flexibility in scheduling their dead periods.

#### 5. NEW BUSINESS

A. Financial Report - Mitch Carty presented a PowerPoint presentation, which appears at the end of these minutes. Chris Calderwood asked if sponsorship money is growing and if it is smart to count on that money. Mitch Carty stated that he is conservative with budget target numbers for the next two or three years, as he does not budget numbers that are not in signed contracts.

B. Marketing Report - Thom Simmons/ Jackie Gibson - Thom Simmons remarked that OMS is now doing the job of signing sponsorships, however we are finding new opportunities. Waterboy Sports is a hydration system that was at our Champions for Character Golf Tournament in June and they will be at the Athletic Administrators Summit in a couple of weeks. The Los Angeles Chargers will be the presenting sponsor of our annual Football Press Conference Luncheon, which usually costs around \$8,000 to put on, and they have agreed to provide \$10,000, as well as offer various items for use at the Champions for Character Golf Tournament. Jackie Gibson spoke about the Athletic Administrators Summit, which had 32 vendors last year and this year has 48 vendors. They will be set up in the large lunch area. Six of these vendors donated items for goodie bags for the attendees and vendors have generated \$30,000 in revenue. This is the second year of our Street Team and Snapchat is the forum being used for the pictures being posted Last year, there were over 100,000 impressions generated. This year, after just five events, over 113,000 impressions have been generated and our new T-shirt launchers a big hit. We are proposing a renewal agreement to Ford as their current contract is up in 2018.

Carter Paysinger called for a ten-minute break at 2:27 p.m.

The meeting reconvened at 2:40 p.m.
C. #PackTheHouse - Rob Wigod - Rob Wigod gave a PowerPoint presentation on the #PackTheHouse initiative that appears at the end of these minutes. Rob Wigod thanked Jackie Gibson for creating the presentation with assistance from Thom Simmons and Mitch Carty. Loren Kleinrock asked if this was directed at playoff games or all games. Rob Wigod answered that it is targeting Southern Section playoff games. Loren Kleinrock's school district voted for stricter sideline controls, with only ten people allowed on the field. Rob Wigod reminded the Executive Committee that schools are given 25 complimentary tickets to use as they see fit. Chris Calderwood stated that the people on the sidelines at his games doesn't mean they get in free and suggested that this message needed to be a Commissioner's Message. There needs to be the message that pass lists are not accepted at playoff games. Rob Wigod stated that this was in the August Commissioner's Message as an introduction and will be the October Commissioner's Message. Todd Arrowsmith suggested a direct message to the Activities Directors would be helpful. Loren Kleinrock asked if there was any data regarding why fans are not showing up to games. Rob Wigod answered that it is something that needs further study.

#### 6. CLOSED SESSION

The Executive Committee went into closed session at 3:06 p.m.

A. Public Employee Evaluation of Performance – (Government Code 54957):
1. CIF Southern Section Goals – 2017-2018

#### 7. REPORT OF ACTION(S) TAKEN IN CLOSED SESSION

The meeting reconvened at 3:13 p.m. The action taken in Closed Session was to approve the 2017-2018 Southern Section Goals, which will be put at the end of these minutes and posted on the section website.

#### 8 REPORTS

A. President's Report - Carter Paysinger - Carter Paysinger reported regarding the recent NFHS Section 7/8 meeting he attended in Oregon. This was a great meeting and reminds me of how good we have it here. There were discussions regarding how football is losing participation and other states are trying to keep students engaged with Pop Warner, recreation leagues and by getting involved in flag football before moving into tackle football to keep students involved. With everything going on in our country right now, we have a huge responsibility to engage our students. So many people are confused and upset, with no idea why St. Bernard High School has students sitting during the pledge of allegiance and they are not immune to what is going on. We as adults can watch it and discuss it and move on, but the students want answers, direction and help. I wonder what is going to happen at high school games during the national anthem tonight and tomorrow. This is far beyond a race issue and we cannot just pretend it is not happening. We need to get out in front of it and have conversations with our students, staff and families to know how to move forward.

B. Treasurer's Report - Jeff Jordan - Jeff Jordan reported that at the end of first quarter, we have a net profit \$82,000. Usually, the first quarter is up because of collecting membership dues and sponsorships. We have 90% of our schools that have paid their sports fees. Thank you to the office staff for the Champions for acter dinner Monday night. This was the best one I have been to in the last

C. Commissioner's Report - Rob Wigod - Attended the NFHS Summer Meeting in Providence and thanked Rita Dever for being there. Thank you to Carter Paysinger, Monica Colunga, Jim Monico, Todd Arrowsmith, Jim Perry, Mike Middlebrook and Rainer Wulf, for coming to the NFHS Section 7/8 meeting and proud to have our section so well represented. We are leaders out there and people want to hear from us. Thank you to Sharon Hodge for her great work on the Champions for Character dinner and to the Executive Committee members that were able to be there. It was our best one ever. Thank you for a good start to the year and a pecial thank you to our staff.

D. Executive Committee Member Reports - President-Elect, Monica Colunga Thank you for lunch. The Champions for Character dinner was the best one I have attended and it was a classy evening. At the NFHS Section 7/8 meeting, there were eleven states that attended. All eleven states made presentations about issues in their areas and the Southern Section and the State CIF are far ahead of those

issues as others are still using enrollment for championships. Ron Nocetti talked about our competitive equity model and the other states were so intrigued. There are many similarities with our issues in sports medicine, the youth sports monster with club sports, and millions of dollars being made before the high school level even starts. Rob Wigod is instrumental in bridging relationships with the other sections and how to work as a state for our students as part of a federation. CSASA Representative, Dave Reid – Champions for Character was a good evening with such great stories. I lost focus at 7:10 pm as I received information that I was being evacuated due to the fire.

Orange County Representative, Jill Matyuch - Looking forward to the Hall of /Distinguished Service Awards Luncheon to support Terry Conley.

CAPSO Representative, Terry Barnum - At the Mission League principal's meeting, interleague transfers were discussed and we are looking as a league to try to limit or discourage transfers throughout the Mission League. It was disheartening that we could not come up with a solution and this is an ongoing conversation with transfers hurting each of us. Coast Area Representative, Paula Hart-Rodas – Our school district is back to doing the Pledge of Allegiance and it started back on 9/11. I am excited that Brian Stow will be speaking at my school tomorrow.

Foothill Area Representative, Loren Kleinrock - We try to do things the way they should be done and coaches can do great things for students by influencing them to do things right. It is disheartening when you know coaches are breaking the rules and the colleges have things go on that are incorrect. If the adults are not doing the right things, then we need to focus them back on doing things

Parochial Area Representative, Rita Dever - Rhode Island was a great experience and I learned a lot. We sent our athletic director to the Athletic Administra tors Summit last year and this year we are sending our principal, vice principal and our athletic director. Citrus Belt Area Representative, Mike West - The Champions for Character dinner was a great event, very well done. I am kicking myself for not nominating a student and a coach this year. My hat is off to Mark Edgemon for nominating individuals that are not from his school, Assembly Bill 1510 is moving out of committee and is in the second year of a two-year bill. There will be opportunity in January to send letters of support for athletic trainers to be licensed before getting them in schools. CADA Representative, Geniel Moon - Thank you for welcoming me and for the opportunity to listen and bring back information to CADA. Activities Director Representative, Todd Arrowsmith - Welcome Geniel, Thank you Rob Wigod for allowing me to go Oregon and I learned a lot. I attended a sports medicine workshop and it was noted that 50-85% of students specialize in one sport. People do not know what to do with air quality control readings. Moms are controlling the future of football because Moms will decide if their sons will play or not. Nevada has a flag football program for girls, as they needed it for a Title XI issue. It is a winter sport so football officials can work. A lot of states have various sportsmanship programs. Assistant Commissioner, Thom Simmons – Given in Marketing Report. Assistant Commissioner, Glenn Martinez - At the Champions for Chareter dinner we had two athletic trainers honored for the first time. The Athletic Administrators Summit has 451 registered at this time with 120 registered in the Principal's Track. Presentations include sportsmanship, game management and several presenters are in this room. There will be a League Coordinator ng at 8:00 a.m. before the Southern Section Council meeting next week. I will be asking for awards presenters for our football championships as we get closer to those events. Assistant Commissioner, Mike Middlebrook - Enjoyed the Oregon event even though it rained, a lot. One thing that was picked up the Origin event even along in a lance, a lot. One thing that was practed by from Oregon was the officials card that has four questions to be asked to home school administration before the game even starts. This should be mandatory for coaches so they are aware of what needs to be in place for the safety of all involved. Assistant Commissioner, Kristine Palle - There are challenges with some of the Blue Book language and we are working to get it cleared up so people cannot take advantage of vague language. Chief Financial Officer, Mitch - Given during Finance Report. Northern Area Representative, Dick Billingsley - Congratulations on the Champions for Character dinner. My Co-Athletic Director received an award. Small Schools Area Representative, Mark Edgemon - I watched Carter Paysinger very closely as I run my first CSADA meeting as president this weekend. Thank you to the CIF-SS for letting me come to the InsideOut Initiative vesterday. The Champions for Character banquet is the most awesome event. That night honors the awardees who are so appreciative and humbled when receiving their awards. Mt. SAC Area Representative, Paul Lopez – The Champions for Character event was spectacular and I need to get better at nominating students. School culture is bigger than academics as it tes everything else. We have a new athletic leadership class that Rob Wigod and Rainer Wulf will speak to regarding sportsmanship. I appreciate that the CIF-SS Staff comes out to these meetings and speaks to the students. I also appreciate the #PackTheHouse initiative and we will support it. Boys' Athletic rirector Representative, Chris Calderwood - The League Coordinator Workshop was a great idea. I love the discussions that we have in this room and that we have the same goal, to do the best for students involved in athletics. Orange County Area Representative, Denise Halstead - It is better we talk to the students about world events before others do. Steve Fryer called one of our coaches and the coach answered his questions well but reporters and others might reach out to other coaches asking about one of our students. Orange County League Representatives are meeting tomorrow and Rob Wigod will be there, along with onica Colunga and we appreciate that support. CAPHERD Representative, Jim Perry - Thank you to the staff for all you do

The last couple of events have been spectacular. At the NFHS Section 7/8 meeting, it is staggering how far ahead we are on issues other states are still wrestling rith. Our students emulate what they see. When the NFL does something, the students do it because they think it is what to do, right or wrong. Do something in your community that has an answer. Do not hide in locker rooms, take a

CSBA Representative, John Norman – It is so enlightening coming here and I get energized. The students are the reason and the answer. That is why we are all here and do things the way we do them. I appreciate the staff.

Marketing Manager, Jackie Gibson - Given during Marketing Report.

Executive Assistant, Sharon Hodge – Thank you to all that came to the Champions for Character dinner. I am humbled by all the nice comments. The Hall of Fame/Distinguished Service Luncheon is on October 18, 2017, and I hope you can attend. I will be sending out invitations for the January retreat in a couple of weeks. Past-President, Jim Monico – I ditto everything said regarding the NFHS Section 7/8 Meeting and if you can, you really need to go to the Chamions for Character event

#### 9. ADVANCE PLANNING

1. October 3, 2017 - CIF Southern Section Council Meeting, The Grand.

# **EXECUTIVE**

(Continued from page 4)

coming into football. NFL flag football appeared to be a big deal at the conference. It was noted that the number of participants are dropping in football. In Washington, there was a school that recruited students and last year they were the best school in the state, but the other schools in the state association would not play them. It is an interesting way to handle a recruiting situation.

Monica Colunga attended a session titled "NFHS Essentials Initiative", discussing expanding opportunities to increase enjoyment of sports prior to high school and to decrease injury and burnout from club participation. Many of these students are not working out in advance, they are just heading out and playing. At the high school level, we are having to reeducate these students, teaching sportsmanship and integrity. This is a nationwide problem. I had the honor of being present at the Hall of Fame induction banquet for Lisa Fernandez from the CIF Southern Section. Jim Monico stated that Rob Wigod was the moderator for a session entitled, "Inclusion, it is Not Just a Game." In Connecticut, there were 6,000 participants in their Special Olympics program in 2006 and that number has grown to 9,000 this past year. If we want to maintain the program of inclusion athletics, stipends are needed. Kentucky started with some grants and are now going forward with this project. Also, he attended "Verbal Judo, How to Deal with Verbal Conflict and De-Escalate a Tense Situation" that was presented by a soccer official. This was a great workshop and a reminder that the most dangerous weapon

is your mouth when talking to coaches and parents. Be cordial not confrontational. Another workshop he attended was "How to Effectively Handle Investigations and Accusations" that went through processes that sections should follow when going through an investigation.

A. President's Report - Carter Paysinger - We had a great start with educating of our member schools regarding their need for full-time athletic trainers last year. Our last meeting set up our next steps. At the NFHS Conference, I attended a sports medicine workshop where a representative from Arizona stated that in order to host a playoff event, their school must have a full-time athletic trainer on staff. Other states discussed a presentation made to their schools and school boards showing the money schools save by having full-time trainers as there are fewer injuries and fewer emergency calls.

B. Treasurer's Report - Jeff Jordan - Mitch Carty went through the details of the current budget and plans for next year. The annual audit will begin on September 5. Regarding membership sports fees, 83% of member schools have created their invoices with 247 invoices paid, despite many schools not starting yet.

C. Commissioner's Report - Rob Wigod - Welcome back. I appreciate the help you give us. We have been out at our eligibility workshops the past few weeks with one more left next week in the Antelope Valley. There are three New Principal/AD Workshops in September with the one scheduled on September 7th already at capacity. The workshops have gone very well and thanks to Glenn Martinez and his assistant Susan Miller for planning and setting up the workshops and to all the administrators for facilitating the events. Thank you to Mitch Carty for all his hard work on the budget and to Thom Simmons and Jackie Gibson for a great presentation and both of you have done a wonderful job as the new marketing team. We have a stronger team then we have ever had, both in this room and with this staff. August is the month of eligibility and getting the students ready to play, as there are scrimmages this week. My thanks to all of you and let us know how we can help you.

D. Executive Committee Member Reports - Executive Assistant - Sharon Hodge - Preparations for the Champions for Character and Hall of Fame/Distinguished Service Awards events are well under way. The Golf Preview is posted on our website as well as the new Competitive Cheer page and Preview. Our January retreat will be at the Mission Inn in Riverside. CAPHERD Representative - Jim Perry - It is good to be here. CSADA Representative - Dave Reid - School opened this past Wednesday. As we went through the Small Schools Area Releaguing Appeals. I was thinking way go to Mark Edgemon for handling the tremendous task of organizing 173 schools. Girls' Athletic

Directors Representative - Jill Matvuch - It is humbling to be here and I thank you for the opportunity. In my own conference, are we losing women in this profession. Many of our schools are going to only one AD instead of two. I am growing professionally and I thank you for having me on this committee. CADA Representative - Todd Arrowsmith - It is great to see Assistant Commissioner under Thom Simmons' name. Attended several CADA retreats this summer teaching Pursuing Victory with Honor and what is appropriate in our student sections. We worked on solutions and I enjoyed talking to students. Orange County Area Representative - Denise Halstead - It is great to be back. I am listening, learning, and growing in this process. Mt. SAC Area Representative - Paul Lopez - We opened school yesterday. I started an Athletic Leadership Class this year. This class is not just for the major sports but all the sports in hopes of getting students to attend games and expand our fan base. We appreciate the office staff. It is frustrating when entities come for appeals that are not engaged in the process and appear at the meetings to represent themselves at ground level.

CSADA Representative - Sandy Gahring - Thank you for the gifts. I want to compliment Glenn Martinez and Sharon Hodge and the entire staff for their hard work at the Champions for Character Golf Tournament. Jackie Gibson, for all the things you have done, I am impressed by you. I attend the eligibility workshops every year and I learn something new every year. We have another new principal and we are encouraging him to get involved and be supportive. At-Large Representative - Dana Wilkerson - Thank you for the vote of confidence at the beginning of this meeting. Marketing Manager - Jackie Gibson - Said everything during our marketing update. Wish you the best of luck in the new year and if you need anything, please let us know. Assistant Commissioner - Thom Simmons -Attended an event regarding the state of youth sport at the LA84 Foundation. Interesting discussion regarding junior football and Pop Warner with questions as to what do we need to do to help increase the declining numbers. The Los Angeles area is actually increasing numbers where the rest of the nation is decreasing. Junior football would love to go to high schools and collect old equipment throughout the year. In 2022, the Super Bowl is coming to Los Angeles which generates over a billion dollars in two weeks. They want to get athletic trainers on all high school campuses and are trying to get state legislators on board. Travelled to Montana and gave two presentations on social media and one on competitive equity playoffs. There were 30 people in each session with only seven in the last one on competitive equity. One great aspect about this gathering was that everyone seemed to know each other and there was great camaraderie. Assistant Commissioner - Mike Middlebrook - Welcome back and looks forward to seeing everyone at league meetings. Assistant Commissioner - Glenn Martinez - Welcome back. The New Principal/ AD Workshops are coming up where we try to go deeper into the Blue Book and go one step further for our new administrators. Looking forward to the Athletic Administrators Summit on October 16. Many of you here will be presenting that day. There are some new topics and we will continue the Principal's Track. Chief Financial Officer - Mitch Carty - If you haven't read Verbal Judo, I highly recommend it. Assistant Commissioner - Kristine Palle - Welcome back. Assistant Commissioner - Rainer Wulf – It has been noticed at the workshops that many

of our veteran athletic directors have been replaced with

new AD's. It would be nice to see, within leagues and ar-

eas, those veteran athletic directors given a proactive role

to help the newbies get started. Retain them for an extra

one or two years for training purposes. Encourage the new

AD's to come to the Summit and New Principal/AD train-

ing and network with others that are attending. This past

season saw many student sections rushing the floor after

games. This is such a safety hazard and administrators

need to have a plan in place. CSBA Representative - John

Norman - It is always great to come back. Small Schools

Area Representative - Mark Edgemon - This releaguing

cycle was difficult. A huge thank you to Rob Wigod for all

his help. I emailed him so many times and he gave me so

much clarity. Rob Wigod thanked Mark Edgemon for the

tremendous job he did with his area. CSADA is celebrat-

ing their 50th anniversary and it will be exciting. There

will be a presentation at the conference in April about the

history of the last 50 years, how it came from a garage to

where it is today. Boys' Athletic Director Representative

- Chris Calderwood - Thank you to Mark Edgemon. Exciting that teams are getting to the playoffs that have never been there before. One unforeseen consequence is schools are hosting big games that they do not normally host. They need to have a plan in place for after the game, no matter the outcome, to get everyone safely off the field/court. The NFHS has a new video system that offers schools the ability to live stream any game to the NFHS Network called Pixellot. The equipment costs about \$4,500. Area Representative - Paula Hart Rodas - Happy to be here again and thanks for the gifts. We are three days away from the start of school and have a giant construction project happening. Our district is continuing to move forward with Pursuing Victory with Honor. We are directly benefitting from the competitive equity model. Look forward to a good year and moving forward. Northern Area Representative - Dick Billingsley - Thom Simmons and Jackie Gibson, thank you for all you do. Sharon Hodge, thank you for lunch. Thank you to the Assistant Commissioners. Our school started last Tuesday. I am looking forward to the Champions for Character dinner as we have several individuals being honored from our area. Past President - Jim Monico - Rob Wigod, your crew is outstanding. You are the best in the state and looking forward to a great year. President Elect - Monica Colunga - Thank you for everything. Ditto to a lot of the comments from today.

#### 10. ADVANCE PLANNING

A DATES

 September 25, 2017 – Champions for Character Award Dinner, The Grand, Long Beach, California, 6:00 p.m.

2. September 28, 2017 – Executive Committee Meeting, CIF Southern Section Office, Los Alamitos, California, 1:00 p.m.

3. October 3, 2017 – CIF Southern Section Council Meeting, The Grand, Long Beach, California,

4. October 16, 2017 – Athletic Administrators Summit, Pomona Fairplex Sheraton Hotel and Conference Center, Pomona, California, 7:30 a.m.

5. October 18, 2017 – CIF Southern Section Hall of Fame/Distinguished Service Luncheon, The Grand, Long Beach, California, 12:00 p.m.

B. SUGGESTED AGENDA ITEMS

There were no suggested agenda items for the next meeting

#### 11. ADJOURNMENT

There was a motion and a second to adjourn the meeting. By unanimous voice vote, the meeting was adjourned at 5:00 p.m.

Submitted By: Sharon Hodge Executive Assistant

Approved By: Rob Wigod Commissioner of Athletics

# **CIF SOUTHERN SECTION - FORD** 2017 FOOTBALL PLAYOFF RESULTS

**DIVISION 1**FIRST ROUND: DIVISION 2 FIRST ROUND: DIVISION 3 FIRST ROUND: DIVISION 4 FIRST ROUND: DIVISION 5 FIRST ROUND: DIVISION 6 FIRST ROUND: Capistrano Valley 35 Carter 6 Bishop Diego 63 Norte Vista 7 Mater Dei 49 Vista Murrieta 7 Upland 59 Tesoro 12 Charter Oak 55 Crespi 14 Paraclete 42 Ventura 0 Cathedral 43 Redland East Vly 26 Westlake 32 Palos Verdes 27 Damien 45 Paso Robles 28 St. Joseph/SM 49 Harvard Westlake 44 San Marino 62 Summit 49 Poly/LB 60 JSerra 44 Downey 47 Etiwanda 14 Paloma Valley 49 San Jacinto 8 Saugus 44 Sonora 2 Edison 28 La Habra 27 (OT) Hart 21 Sierra Canyon 7 MIssion Viejo 38 Servite 36 Rancho Verde 28 Oak HIIIs 8 Orange Lutheran 28 Chaminade 25 Oaks Christian 42 Arroyo Grande 13 Corona del Mar 42 Roosevelt 35 Yucaipa 43 La Quinta/LQ 10 St. Paul 48 West Torrance 14 St. John Bosco 35 Bishop Amat 21 Valencia/V 54 Great Oak 23 Glendora 38 Santiago/C 23 Lawndale 41 MIra Costa 13 Crescenta Valley 12 Lompoc 42 Camarillo 17 Los Osos 21 Rancho Cucamonga 28 San Clemente 10 Norco 56 El Toro 50 Villa Park 45 Murrieta Mesa 51 Colony 28 Moorpark 42 Los Altos 0 Canyon/CC 35 San Gorgonio 28 Los Alamitos 34 Chaparral 38 Valencia/P 0 Murrieta Valley 59 Santa Margarita 56 Calabasas 30 Notre Dame/SO 7 St. Francis 31 La Serna 27 San Juan Hills 24 Redondo Union 23 Fountain Valley 38 Elsinore 23 Centennial/Corona 35 Serra 21 Citrus Hill 56 Newbury Park 35 Heritage 55 La Mirada 21 Cajon 48 Palm Springs 6 Paramount 40 Golden Valley 12 Wilson/LB 0 Nipomo 2 QUARTERFINALS: QUARTERFINALS: QUARTERFINALS: QUARTERFINALS: QUARTERFINALS: QUARTERFINALS: Upland 59 Cathedral 20 Charter Oak 39 Westlake 28 Capistrano Valley 34 Damien 7 Paraclete 55 St. Joseph/SM 30 Bishop Diego 59 San Marino 21 Mater Dei 55 Poly 13 Oaks Christian 42 Edison 13 Downey 49 Corona del Mar 42 Mission Viejo 48 Orange LUtheran 35 Rancho Verde 55 Hart 27 Paloma Valley 56 Yucaipa 21 Saugus 28 St. Paul 27 St. John Bosco 55 Valencia 70 Murrieta Mesa 54 Glendora 20 MOorpark 22 Lawndale 20 Mira Costa 45 Canyon/CC 28 El Toro 37 Rancho Cucamonga 28 Norco 35 Lompoc 16 Centennial/Corona 77 Murrieta Valley 34 Cajon 42 SAn Juan Hills 21 Paramount 34 Chaparral 21 Golden Valley 41 Fountain Valley 14 Heritage 41 Calabasas 7 St. Francis 30 Citrus Hill 20 SEMIFINALS: SEMIFINALS: SEMIFINALS: SEMIFINALS: SEMIFINALS: SEMIFINALS: Bishop Deigo 45 Saugus 27 Mater Dei 49 Mission Viejo 21 Oaks Christian 31 Upland 13 Rancho Verde 41 Charter Oak 22 Downey 41 Capistrano Valley 21 Paraclete 55 Paloma Valley 35 Golden Valley 20 Mira Costa 18 St. John Bosco 62 Centennial/Corona 34 Valencia 52 Heritage 34 St. Francis 52 El Toro 17 Cajon 56 Murrieta Mesa 28 Moorpark 27 Paramount 21 FINAL: Cajon 54 Downey 28 FINAL: Bishop Diego 37 GOlden Valley 6 FINAL: Oaks Christian 20 Valencia/V 19 FINAL: Rancho Verde 44 St. Francis 42 FINAL: Mater Dei 49 FINAL: Paraclete 49 St. John Bosco 24 Moorpark 28 DIVISION 9 FIRST ROUND: DIVISION 11 FIRST ROUND: DIVISION 12 FIRST ROUND: DIVISION 13 FIRST ROUND: EIGHT-MAN DIV. 1 FIRST ROUND: DIVISION 8 FIRST ROUND: DIVISION 10 FIRST ROUND: Culver City 24 Heritage Christian 8 Apple Valley 75 Twentynine Palms 0 Rio Mesa 41 Aguinas 44 Schurr 49 Santa Clarita Chr 48 Royal 7 Maranatha 3 Santa Ana Valley 14 Hamilton 10 Moreno Valley 51 Leuzinger 31 Santa Maria 56 Carpinteria 28 Montebello 28 Poly/Pasadena 24 Coachell Valley 45 Ramona 7 Kaiser 35 San Dimas 34 (OT) Santa Clara 35 Workman 7 Quartz Hill 48 Arlington 17 Rio Hondo Prep 42 Azusa 22 Westminster 42 St. Genevieve 20 Rancho Christian 24 Laguna Beach 17 Valley Christian.C 28 Notre Dame/R 13 Cypress 62 Agoura 27 Antelope Valley 39 Righetti 18 Covina 21 Victor Valley 7 Orange 28 Cantwell Srd Hrt 26 Palm Desert 27 Saddleback Vly Chr 0 Grand Terrace 35 Alta Loma 8 South El Monte 50 El Dorado 7 Arcadia 21 Hillcrest 20 La Quinta/W 28 Savanna 15 Pacifica/GG 57 Whittier 214 Big Bear 33 Banning 19 Mojave 67 Sage Hill 20 Grace Brethren 48 Buena 38 Mayfair 35 Chaffey 6 Woodbridge 35 Aliso Niguel 10 Webb 28 Calif Military Inst. 21 Valley View 49 Shadow Hills 28 Katella 35 Millikan 55 Cate 58 Patriot 27 Northview 23 Crean Lutheran 21 Colton 14 Rancho Mirage 41 Jurupa Hills 39 Silver Valley 40 Carnegie/R 36 Garden Grove 42 Sunny HIIIs 28 St. Anthony 31 Norwalk 19 Gahr 31 Santa Fe 28 Godinez 44 Verbum Dei 0 Silverado 56 Citrus Valley15 Burroughs/R 43 Rubidoux 0 Dos Pueblos 41 Brentwood 3 Arroyo 35 Lakeside 6 SAnta Ana 46 Bell Gardens 20 Nogales 42 La Puente 0 QUARTERFINALS: QUARTERFINALS: QUARTERFINALS: QUARTERFINALS: QUARTERFINALS: QUARTERFINALS: Culver City 45 Coachella Valley 27 Apple Valley 59 Montebello 28 Santa Clara 35 Santa Clarita Chr 14 Rio Mesa 63 Aquinas 56 Moreno Valley 7 Santa Maria 42 Quartyz HIII 36 Grand Terrace 15 Covina 41 Westminster 28 South El Monte 42 Rancho Christian 35 Orcutt Academy 55 Chadwick 37 Antelope Valley 58 Valley Christian 34 Cypress 21 Palm Desert 17 Orage 27 Rio Hondo Prep 14 Mojave 38 Cate 19 Grace Brethren29 Millikan 22 Valley View 59 Pacifica 28 Katella 41 Big Bear 42 Patriot 14 La Quinta 56 Mayfair 42 Arcadia 35 Woodbridge 7 Webb 28 Silver Valley 35 Nogales 29 Silverado 35 Garden Grove 28 SAnta Ana 35 Godinez 6 Rancho Mirage 27 Villanova Prep 86 Windward 30 Burroughs 32 St. Anthony 7 Dos Pueblos 35 Gahr 28 Arroyo 21 SEMIFINALS: SEMIFINALS: SEMIFINALS: SEMIFINALS: SEMIFINALS: SEMIFINALS: SEMIFINALS: Antelope Valley 70 Rio Mesa 56 Quartz Hill 21 Apple Valley 14 Covina 57 Culver City 56 Santa Maria 35 South El Monte 14 Aquinas 47 Cypress 12 Orange 52 Santa Clara 8 Dos Pueblos 38 Valley View 30 Burroughs 31 Mayfair 14

**DIVISION 7**FIRST ROUND:

Grace Brethren 35 Silverado 31

FINAL: Grace Brethren 63 Antelope Valley 27

FINAL:

Aquinas 24 Burroughs/R 6

FINAL: Quartz Hill 26 Dos Pueblos 21

Katella 35 Rancho Mirage 21 FINAL:

Katella 55

Covina 49

Big Bear 45 Santa Ana 17 FINAL: Big Bear 37 Santa Maria 23 Silver Valley 49 La Quinta 40

FINAL: Orange 30 Silver Vallley 20

Pacifica/Oxnard 63 Linfield Christian 41

St. Paul 54 Monrovia 42

St. Margaret's 55 North Torrance 14

Norte Vista 42 Diamond Ranch 21

San Gorgonio 49 South Hills 22

Tustin 42 Huntington Beach 27

Golden Valley 14 Ayala 10

El Segundo 17 Canyon/Anaheim 10

QUARTERFINALS:

St. Paul 28 Pacifica 21

Norte Vista 62 St. Margaret's 56

San Gorgonio 41 Tustin 18

Golden Valley 28 El Segundo 7

SEMIFINALS:

Norte Vista 21 St. Paul 7

San Gorgonio 39 Golden Valley 35

FINAL: San Gorgonio 27 Norte Vista 21

Faith Baptist 58 Calvary Chapel/D 6

Upland Chr Acad. 48 Flintridge Prep 28

Chadwick 56 Riverside Cty Ed Ac 28

Orcutt Academy 63 Desert Christian/L 8

Acad/Careers & Explore 14 Windward 33 Mission College Prep 30

VIIIanova Prep 81 Public Safety Acad. 30

QUARTERFINALS: Faith Bapti 80 Upland Chr Acad. 24

Faith Baptist 56 Orcutt Academy 50 Mojave 86 Villanova Prep 44

FINAL: Faith Baptist 74 Mojave 6

8-MAN DIVISION 2 FIRST ROUND:

Hesperia Christian 58 St. Michael's Prep 30

Valley Christian/SM 58 Calvary Baptist 20

Laguna Blanca 80 Cornerstone Chr/W 34

Desert Christian Acad. Bye

California Lutheran 55 Lutheran/LV 12

Hillcrest Chr/TO 65 Bloomington Chr 32

Rolling Hills Prep 49 Univ./Careers & Sport 14

Lancaster Baptist 42 Crossroads Chr 20 QUARTERFINALS:

Hesperia Christian 44 Valley Christian/SM 26

Laguna Balnca 44 Desert Christian Acad. 35

Bloomington Chr 2 California Luth 0 (Forfeit)

Lancaster Baptist 41 Rolling HIlls Prep 13

SEMIFINALS:

Laguna Blanca 42 Hesperia Christian 36

Lancaster Baptist 56 Bloomington Christian 22

FINAL:

Lancaster Baptist 42 Laguna Blanca 20 CIF SOUTHERN SECTION- FORD 2017 GIRLS TEAM TENNIS CHAMPIONS

**DIVISION 1**Corona Del Mar

DIVISION 2 Beckman

DIVISION 3
Redlands

DIVISION 4 Glendale

DIVISION 5 Temescal Canyon

# CIF SOUTHERN SECTION - FORD 2017 FOOTBALL CHAMPIONS

DIVISION 1 DIVISION 6 DIVISION 11

Mater Dei Bishop Diego Katella

DIVISION 2 DIVISION 7 DIVISION 12

Oaks Christian El Modena Big Bear

DIVISION 3 DIVISION 8 DIVISION 13

Rancho Verde Grace Brethren Orange

DIVISION 4 DIVISION 9 8-MAN DIVISION 1
Cajon Aquinas Faith Baptist

DIVISION 5 DIVISION 10 8-MAN DIVISION 2
Paraclete Quartz Hill Lancaster Baptist

# 2017 CIF SOUTHERN SECTION FORD GIRLS GOLF CHAMPIONSHIPS

	GIRLS TEAM FINALS			INDIVIDUAL FINALS		
DIV./PL	SCHOOL	SCORE	PL.	PLAYER/SCHOOL	SCORE	
CENTRAL 1.	Diamond Bar	379	1.	Anna Dong, St. Joseph/Lakewood	67	
2.	Mater Dei	388	2.	Irene Kim, Kennedy	69	
3.	West Ranch	394	3.	Khaneryn Utu, Mater Dei (card-off)	71	
EASTERN			4.	Hailey Borja, Trabuco Hills	71	
1. 2.	Troy San Marino	378 394	5T.	Kayla Sam, Canyon/Anaheim	72	
3.	Sonora	406	5T.	Leila Dizon, Marlborough	72	
NORTHERN		5T.	Chayse Gomez, Rosary Academy	72		
1.	Walnut	358	8T.	Arlene Salvador, Highland	73	
2. 3.	Westlake Harvard Westlake	368 402	8T.	Nodoka Honda, University	73	
		402	8T.	Abigail Wiranatha, Walnut	73	
SOUTHER 1.	<b>N</b> University Woodbridge Huntington Beach	365	8T.	Zoe Campos, West Ranch	73	
2. 3.		377 396	8T.	Marissa D'Amore, Westlake	73	
			8T	Kristen Chen, Westlake	73	

# CIF SOUTHERN SECTION FORD 2017 GIRLS VOLLEYBALL PLAYOFF RESULTS

#### **DIVISION 1**

First Round: Marymount Bye; Vista Murrieta def. Edison 20-25, 25-19, 28-26, 19-25, 15-11; Poly/Long Beach def. Aliso Niguel 3-1; Foothill def. JSerra 23-25, 19-25, 25-23, 25-23, 15-8; Redondo Union def. Flintridge Sacred Heart 25-7, 25-16. 25-13: Trabuco Hills def. Dana Hills 23-25. 25-21, 22-25, 25-15, 15-9; Rancho Cucamonga def. Great Oak 25-14, 24-26, 25-18, 25-20; Santa Margarita def. Beckman 25-23, 25-16, 25-18; Temecula Valley Bye; Harvard Westlake def. Ventura 25-14, 25-11, 25-9; Huntington Beach def. Murrieta Valley 25-16, 25-15, 25-18; Corona del Mar def. Tesoro 25-23, 25-23, 22-25, 17-25, 15-11; Lakewood def. Chaparral 25-12, 25-20, 22-25, 25-16; San Juan Hills def. Los Alamitos 25-14, 25-20, 26-24; Mira Costa def. Woodbridge 25-20, 25-13, 25-13; Mater Dei Bye.

Second Round: Marymount def. Vista Murrieta 25-22, 25-18, 25-11; Poly def. Foothill 25-13, 25-10, 25-11; Redondo def. Trabuco Hills 25-21, 25-11, 25-24; Santa Margarita def. Rancho Cucamonga 25-16, 25-19, 25-17; Harvard Westlake def. Temecula Valley 25-18, 25-16, 25-22; Corona del Mar def. Huntington Beach 23-25, 25-21, 25-17, 25-10; San Juan Hills def. Lakewood 27-25, 25-22, 25-22; Mater Dei def. Mira Costa 25-20, 25-22, 20-25, 25-21.

**Quarterfinals:** Marymount def. Poly 25-21, 26-24, 25-20; Redondo def. Santa Margarita 25-14, 25-23, 24-26, 25-16; Corona del Mar def. Harvard Westlake 20-25, 25-23, 25-21, 25-16; Mater Dei def. San Juan Hills 25-21, 25-13, 22-25, 25-15. **Semifinals:** Marymount def. Redondo 25-21, 25-23, 21-25, 25-22; Mater Dei def. Corona del Mar 25-22, 25-14, 25-19.

Final: Mater Dei def. Marymount 26-24, 26-24, 25-20.

## **DIVISION 2**

First Round: Santiago/Corona Bye; Glendora Bye; Palos Verdes def. Bishop Montgomery 25-23, 25-23, 25-22; Los Osos def. Mission Viejo 25-19, 28-26, 25-11; Valencia/Valencia Bye; Yucaipa def. Peninsula 25-20, 25-14, 23-25, 25-19; El Toro def. Marlborough 23-25, 25-23, 22-25, 26-24, 20-18; Esperanza Bye; El Dorado Bye; San Marcos def. Louisville 25-14, 25-19, 26-24; Hart def. Weilson/Long Beach 25-19, 25-19, 25-22; Notre Dame/Sherman Oaks Bye; Westlake Bye; St. Joseph/Lakewood def. Millikan 25-15, 25-16, 25-15; ML King def. Claremont 22-25, 26-24, 25-21, 25-15; Orange Lutheran def. South Torrance 24-26, 25-18, 23-25, 20-25. Second Round: Santiago def. Glendora 25-21, 25-12, 25-14; Palos Verdes def. Los Osos 25-27, 27-25, 31-29, 25-23; Valencia def. Esperanza 15-25, 25-11, 25-22, 25-20; El Dorado def. Hart 25-19, 25-22, 25-22; St. Joseph def. WEstlake 24-26, 25-23, 25-20, 25-19, 15-10; Orange Lutheran def. ML King 25-20, 25-15, 25-21.

**Quarterfinals:** Santiago def. Palos Verdes 22-25, 25-12, 25-22, 25-19; Esperanza def. Valencia 25-19, 20-25, 22-25, 25-21, 15-8; El Dorado def. Notre Dame 25-21, 18-25, 25-23, 25-27, 15-10; Orange Lutheran def. St. Joseph 25-19, 25-18, 25-22.

**Semifinals:** Santiago def. Esperanza 25-11, 25-19, 25-18; Orange Lutheran def. El Dorado 25-20, 17-25, 25-19, 29-25, 19-17.

Final: Orange Lutheran def. Santiago/Corona 25-20, 22,25, 27-25, 25-21.

#### **DIVISION 3**

First Round: La Salle Bye; Arcadia def. Monrovia 22-25, 25-12, 25-17, 27-25; Yorba Linda def. Redlands East Valley 22-25, 25-12, 26-24, 25-21; Arroyo Grande def. Buena 25-1, 22-25, 25-22, 25-21; Saddleback Valley Christian def. Chadwick 25-8, 25-18, 25-9; Notre Dame Academy def. Newbury Park 25-20, 25-22, 25-16; Dos Pueblos def. Oxnard 25-23, 25-15, 25-17; Sage Hill Bye; Laguna Beach Bye; Murrieta Mesa def. Elsinore 25-27, 21-25, 272-5, 32-30; Burroughs/Burbank def. Norco 25-28, 25-15, 25-14; Westridge def. Cajon 25-21, 25-12, 25-13; Village Christian def. Chaminade 25-16, 25-13, 25-16; Serrano def. Roosevelt 25-10, 25-19, 25-17; Citrus Valley def. Troy 25-21, 262-4, 25-20; Sierra Canyon Bye . Second Round: La Salle def. Arcadia 25-15, 25-15, 25-23; Yorba Linda def. Arroyo Grande 20-25, 21-25, 25-22, 28-26, 18-16; SAddleback Valley Christian def. Notre Dame Academy 3-1; Sage Hill def. Dos Pueblos 25-18, 25-14, 25-21; Laguna Beach def. Murrieta Mesa 25-19, 25-23, 25-27, 25-23; Westridge def. Burroughs 25-17, 21-25, 15-25, 25-22, 15-9; Serrano def. Village Christian 28-26, 25-15, 25-19; Sierra Canyon def. Citrus Valley 25-24, 25-18, 25-22.

**Quarterfinals:** La Salle def. Yorba Linda 26-24, 25-14, 25-20; Sage Hill def. Saddleback Valley Christian 14-25, 25-22, 25-21, 25-21; Westridge def. Laguna Beach 26-24, 17-25, 27-25, 25-21; Sierra Canyon def. Serrano 25-17, 25-19, 25-15. **Semifinals:** La Salle def. Sage Hill 15-25, 25-17, 25-23, 23-25, 15-11; Sierra Canyon def. Westridge 25-12, 25-13, 25-12.

Final: Sierra Canyon def. La Salle 25-21, 25-16, 18-25, 25-17.

#### **DIVISION 4**

**Wild Card:** Pasadena def. San Marino 25-21, 18-25, 25-17, 25-22, .

First Round: Culver City def. Pasadena 25-10, 25-15, 25-11; La Habra def. Torrance 25-21, 18-25, 25-23, 25-23; Mayfair def. Warren 25-16, 25-13, 25-16; Poly/Pasadena def. Camarillo 25-10, 25-17, 25-17; Moorpark def. Saugus 23-25, 28-26, 25-17, 28-26; El Segundo def. Downey 25-12, 25-20, 24-26, 25-19; Cypress def. Mayfield 25-23, 25-16, 25-21; Oaks Christian def. Atascadero 25-18, 25-18, 25-20; Santa Monica def. West Torrance 25-16, 17-25, 25-15, 25-19; Valley Christian/Cerritos def. Gahr 25-11, 25-18, 25-15; La Canada def. Burbank 25-13, 25-12, 25-17; Rio Mesa def. San Luis Obispo 3-0; Oak Park def. Viewpoint 25-13, 25-19, 25-27, 25-15; Crean Lutheran def. Apple Valley 25-10, 24-26, 25-17, 25-19; Upland def. Palm Desert 25-14, 19-25, 25-23, 25-21; Alemany def. Los Altos 25-23, 25-21, 25-23.

Second Round: Culver City def. La Habra 25-15, 25-16, 25-16; Poly def. Mayfair .3-0; El Segundo def. Moorpark 25-22, 25-21, 14-25, 25-23; Cypress def. Oaks Christian 3-2; Santa Monica def. Valley Christian 23-25, 25-19, 25-11, 25-11; La Canada def. Rio Mesa 23-25, 25-10, 22-25, 25-15, 15-23; Crean Lutheran def. Oak Park 20-25, 27-25, 25-14, 25-21; Alemany def. Upland 25-20, 25-14, 25-15.

**Quarterfinals:** Culver City def. Poly 25-14, 17-25, 25-16, 25-9; Cypress def. El Segundo 25-14, 25-18, 25-20; Santa Monica def. La Canada 25-21, 25-20, 25-9; Crean Lutheran def. Alemany 25-12, 25-23, 25-22.

**Semifinals:** Culver City def. Cypress 18-25, 25-12, 25-18, 25-14; Santa Monica def. Crean Lutheran 25-20, 23-25, 25-22, 25-23.

Final: Culver City def. Santa Monica 25-15, 21-25, 25-23, 25-15, 15-10.

#### **DIVISION 5**

First Round: La Reina def. South Hills 25-18, 25-17, 25-21; Costa Mesa def. Tustin 23-25, 25-19, 28-26, 25-17; Vistamar def. Norwalk 25-7, 25-11, 25-8; Xavier Prep def. JW North 25-10, 25-19, 25-7; Laguna Blanca def. Righetti 25-13, 25-13, 25-12; Whittier Christian def. La Serna 25-10, 25-19, 25-16; St. Anthony def. Poly/ Riverside 25-11, 23-25, 25-19, 25-15; Sonora def. Kennedy 25-13, 25-15, 25-17; Alta Loma def. Woodcrest Christian 25-10, 25-19, 25-14; Hemet def. Palm Springs 25-13, 25-21, 25-14; Oak Hills def. St. Margaret's 3-1; Quartz Hill def. Campbell Hall 25-16, 25-17, 25-20; Cerritos def. Santa Ynez 25-12, 25-27, 25-18 25-9; Diamond Bar def. Shadow Hills 25-14, 25-15, 25-20; Rim of the World def. Calvary Chapel/Santa Ana 25-12, 19-25, 25-11, 25-16; St. Paul def. Valley View 25-10, 25-11, 25-22.

**Second Round:** La Reina def. Costa Mesa 25-13, 25-21, 25-20; Xavier Prep def. Vistamar 25-17, 25-22, 25-22; Laguna Blanca def. Whittier Christian 25-6, 25-13, 25-17; Sonora def. St. Anthony 28-26, 25-17, 25-23; Hemet def. Alta Loma 26-24, 16-25, 21-25, 25-20, 15-10; Quartz Hill def. Oak Hills 19-25, 25-18, 25-18, 21-25, 15-10; Diamond Bar def. Cerritos 25-10, 17-25, 25-23, 25-10; St. Paul def. Rim of the World 25-16, 25-20, 13-25, 16-25, 15-9.

**Quarterfinals:** La Reina def. Xavier Prep 25-23, 25-10, 25-17; SOnora def. Laguna Blanca 30-28, 25-19, 25-23; Quartz Hill def. Hemet 3-1; St. Paul def. Diamond Bar 25-10, 25-23, 25-22. **Semifinals:** Sonora def. La Reina 25-21, 25-22, 20-25, 25-22; St. Paul def. Quartz HIII 21-25, 25-17, 25-19, 21-25, 11-15.

Final: St. Paul def. Sonora 25-10, 20-25, 25-21, 25-15.

#### **DIVISION 6**

First Round: Bishop Amat def. Hesperia 25-13, 25-23, 25-21; Aguinas def. Granite Hills 25-8, 25-14, 25-14; Walnut def. Don Lugo 20-25, 25-21, 25-12, 25-12; California def. La Mirada 25-19, 25-23, 25-17; Notre Dame/Riverside def. Rialto 25-17, 25-22, 25-14; Grace Brethren def. Bell Gardens 25-16, 25-11, 15-25, 25-21; Diamond Ranch def. Segerstrom 25-22, 24-26, 25-9, 25-18; Paloma Valley def. La Sierra 25-18, 25-21, 23-25, 25-21; Loma Linda Academy def. Silverado 25-10, 25-14, 25-5; Beaumont def. Temescal Canyon 25-14, 25-8, 25-19; GAbrielino def. Pacifica/Oxnard 25-18, 25-23, 19-25, 20-25, 15-13; Highland def. SAnta Fe 25-23, 25-15, 25-21; Ontario Christian def. Summit 25-16, 25-11, 25-18; Brentwood def. St. Monica Catholic 25-7, 25-16, 25-12; Schurr def. Whitney .25-14, 25-11, 25-11; Templeton def. Whittier 27-25, 25-11, 25-17.

**Second Round:** Aquinas def. Bishop Amat 25-22, 25-19, 26-24; Walnut def. California25-21, 25-21, 21-25, 25-14; Notre Dame def. Grace Brethren 25-15, 23-25, 25-22, 25-11; Paloma Valley def. Diamond Ranch 23-25, 25-22, 29-27, 25-11; Loma Linda Academy def. Beaumont

Continued next page

25-22, 28-26, 25-17; Gabrielino def. Highland 25-18, 25-21, 14-25, 25-23; Ontario Christian def. Bretnwood 25-16, 25-14, 25-22; Templeton def. Schurr 28-26, 25-22, 22-25, 22-25, 15-6.

**Quarterfinals:** Aquinas def. Walnut 25-21, 25-23, 25-20; Notre Dame def. Paloma Valley 3-1; Loma Linda Academy def. Gabrielino 25-12, 25-14, 25-16; Ontario Christian def. Templeton 25-23, 25-21, 25-21.

**Semifinals:** Notre Dame/Riverside; Loma Linda Academy def. Ontario CHristian 18-25, 25-18, 25-22, 25-22.

Final: Loma Linda Academy def. Notre Dame/ Riverside 25-22, 25-17, 25-22

#### **DIVISION 7**

**First Round:** Duarte def. Perris 25-9, 25-15, 25-17; San Dimas def. Loara 25-14, 23-25, 25-15, 25-17; Katella def. Banning 25-9, 25-21, 25-23; Heritage Christian def. Mary Star of the Sea 25-9, 25-18, 25-11; Yucca Valley def. Vista Del Lago 25-19, 25-15, 25-12; Mark Keppel def. Jurupa Valley 25-15, 25-11, 19-25, 25-22; Morro

FORD 2017 GIRLS VOLLEYBALL CHAMPIONS

> DIVISION 1 Mater Dei

DIVISION 2
Orange Lutheran

**DIVISION 3**Sierra Canyon

**DIVISION 4 Culver City** 

DIVISION 5 St. Paul

DIVISION 6 Loma Linda Academy

DIVISION 7
The Archer School for Girls

DIVISION 8
Buckley

DIVISION 9
Glendale Adventist

DIVISION 10 Carnegie/Riverside

Bay def. El Monte 17-25, 25-16, 25-13, 25-17; The Archer School for Girlsdef. Lancaster 25-16, 25-13, 25-18; Colony def. Barstow 25-14, 25-17, 25-22; Patriot def. Jurupa Hills 25-16, 25-14, 25-17; Pomona Catholic def. Garden Grove 3-2; Century def. Nipomo 25-22, 19-25, 25-19, 25-22; Gladstone def. Rancho Mirage 25-12, 25-15, 23-25, 25-17; Moreno Valley def. San Jacinto 25-18, 25-18, 16-25, 27-25; Fontana def. Northview 17-25, 25-21, 25-23, 25-12; Foothill Technology def. Canwell Sacred Heart of Mary 25-15, 25-19, 25-10.

Second Round: Duarte def. San Dimas 25-18, 25-22, 25-22; Heritage Christian def. Katella 25-11, 25-16, 25-15; Yucca Valley def. Mark Keppel 25-15, 22-25, 25-21, 25-15; The Archer School def. Morro Bay 25-14, 25-14, 25-17; Colony def. Patriot 25-18, 25-13, 14-25, 25-23; Pomona Catholic def. Century 25-20, 23-25, 27-25, 25-22; Gladstone def. Moreno Valley 25-14, 25-20, 25-16; Foothill Technology def. Fontana 25-10. 25-23, 25-15.

**Quarterfinals:** Heritage Christian def. Duarte 3-0; The Archer School def. Yucca Valley 25-15, 25-21, 25-14; Colony def. Pomona Catholic 25-20, 25-16, 25-17; Foothill Technology def. Gladstone 25-19, 25-15, 25-9.

**Semifinals:** The Archer School def. Heritage Christian 25-21, 20-25, 13-25, 25-14, 15-11; Foothill Technology def. Colony 25-15, 25-20, 23-25, 25-21.

Final: The Archer School for Girls def. Foothill Technology 25-20, 26-24, 19-25, 25-21.

#### **DIVISION 8**

First Round: Upland Christian Academy def. Eastside 25-16, 25-13, 25-12; La Quinta/Westminster def. Fairmont Prep 25-9, 25-13, 25-10; Covina deff. Coachella Valley 25-14, 25-12, 25-15; Rosemead def. Grand Terrace 25-13, 25-18, 26-24; Buckley def. Bishop Conaty-Loretto 25-20, 25-19, 25-13; Azusa def. Connelly 22-25, 25-9, 25-19, 25-13; Nordhoff def. Coast Union 25-10, 25-19, 25-18; Providence/Burbank def. Bishop Diego 3-0; Malibu def. Milken Community 3-0; Trinity Classical def. Hawthorne MSA 25-9, 25-12, 25-19; Edgewood def. San Gabriel Academy 25-23, 19-25, 25-18, 25-27, 15-9; Ocean View def. Bolsa Grande 26-24, 23-25, 25-17, 25-19; Rolling Hills Prep def. St. Mary's Academy 25-23, 25-21, 25-21; Da Vinci Design Academy def. Baldwin Park 22-25, 25-18, 25-19, 25-20; Oakwood def. Savanna 25-22, 25-12, 25-18; Capistrano Valley Christian def. South El Monte 25-10, 25-4, 25-12.

Second Round: Upland Christian def. La Quinta 25-18, 25-14, 25-17; Covina def. Rosemead 20-25, 25-17, 25-23, 25-23; Buckley def. Azusa 25-13, 25-23, 25-8; Nordhoff def. Providence 3-1; Malibu def. Trinity Classical Acad. 3-0; Ocean View def. Edgewood 25-14, 25-20, 25-20; Rolling Hills Prep def. Da Vinci Design 25-15, 24-26, 25-16, 23-25 15-12; Capistrano Valley Chr def. Oakwood 22-25, 20-25, 25-10, 25-20, 15-9.

**Quarterfinals:** Upland Christian def. Covina 25-18, 25-22, 25-16; Buckley def. Nordhoff 25-19, 25-19, 25-18; Malibu def. Ocean View 24-26, 25-19, 25-18, 25-21; Capistrano Valley Chr def. Rolling Hills Prep 25-13, 25-13, 25-16.

**Semifinals:** Buckley def. Upland Christian 3-2, Capistrtano Valley Chr def. Malibu 25-21, 22-25, 27-25, 25-21.

Final: Buckley def. Capistrano Valley Christian 25-17, 21-25, 25-23, 25-23.

#### **DIVISION 9**

First Round: Glendale Adventist def. Pacific

Lutheran 25-8, 25-23, 25-7; Carpinteria def. Hillcrest Christian/Thousand Oaks 3-0; Orangewood Academy def. Desert Christian Academy 26-24, 25-15, 25-16; Sacred Heart of Jesus def. Calvary Murrieta 25-17, 25-18, 25-15; California Lutheran def. Santa Rosa Academy 17-25, 25-23. 25-23, 25-16, 20-25; de Toledo def. St. Monica Academy 25-17, 25-17, 25-18; Garey def. Coastal Christian 23-25, 20-25, 25-13, 25-11, 15-10; Faith Baptist def. Providence/Santa Barbara 25-7, 25-8, 25-10; Mammoth def. Thacher 25-16, 25-13, 31-29; KLake Arrowhead Christian def. Big Bear 25-19, 25-18, 25-17; Holy Family def. Dunn 25-20, 25-18, 25-10; Southlands Christian .def. Mesa Grande Academy 25-21, 25-19, 17-25, 25-13; Santa Clarita Christian def. San Jacinto Valley Academy 3-0; University Prep def. Desert Christian/Lancaster 25-19, 27-29, 25-17, 23-25, 15-12; Bassett def. Cuyama Valley 3-0; Rancho Christian def. Holy Martyrs 3-0.

Second Round: Glendale Adventist def. Carpinteria 25-20, 25-22, 27-25; Sacred Heart of Jesus def. Orangewood Academy 25-17, 25-15, 25-18; de Toledo def. California Lutheran 25-16, 27-29, 25-18, 25-23; Faith Baptist def. Garey 25-13, 25-19, 25-22; Mammoth def. Lake Arrowhead Chr 25-21, 25-8, 25-22; Southlands Christian def. Holy Family 25-23, 19-25, 20-25, 25-18, 15-11; Santa Clarita Christian def. University Prep 25-15, 25-17, 25-19; Rancho Christian def. Bassett 25-4, 25-23, 25-22.

Quarterfinals: Glendale Adventist def. Sacred Heart of Jesus 25-17, 25-23, 25; Faith Baptist def. de Toledo 25-23, 25-19, 25-22; Mammoth def. Southlands Christian 26-23, 25-20, 25-10; Santa Clarita Christian def. Rancho Christian 27-25, 17-25, 25-17, 25-16.

**Semifinals:** Glendale Adventist def. Faith Baptist 19-25, 25-21, 17-25, 25-16, 15-13; Santa Clarita Christian def. Mammoth 25-13, 25-21, 25-22.

Final: Glendale Adventist def. Santa Clarita Christian 25-13, 24-26, 25-18, 25-21.

#### **DIVISION 10**

First Round: Lone Pine Bye; Redlands Adventist def. Crossroads Christian 25-19, 25-15, 25-14; AGBU/Pasadena def. Sequoyah 25-12, 25-17, 27-25; Orange Vistas def. Lutheran/ La Verne 3-0; Carnegie/Riverside def. Bethel Christian/Riverside25-6, 28-8, 25-11; Riverside Prep def. Bloomington Christian 3-0; Newbury Park Adventist def. Waverly 3-1; Victor Valley Christian Bye; Excelsior Charter def. Delphi Academy 25-5, 25-8, 25-6; Academy careers/ Exploration def. Judson International 3-0; San Fernando Valley Academy def. Animo Leadership 25-15, 26-24, 25-22; Pacifica Christian/OC def. Cornerstone Christian/Wildomar 25-5, 25-16, 25-21; Lucerne Valley def. Highland Hall 25-11, 25-11, 25-15; Sherman Indiand def. Ambassador 25-21, 25-21, 25-19; INternational School of Los Angeles Bye; Eastside Christian def. Public Safety Academy 3-0.

Second Round: Lone Pine def. Radlamds Adventist 25-21, 25-15, 25-12; Orange Vista def. AGBU/P 3-1; Carnegie/R def. Riverside Prep 25-6, 25-15, 25-15; Victor Valley Christian def. Newbury Park Adventist 3-0; Excelsior Charter def. Academy/Careers Exploration 25-14, 24-26, 25-17, 25-17; Pacifica Christian/Orange OC def. San Fernando Valley acad. 27-25, 23-25, 25-21, 25-21; Sherrman Indian def. Lucerne Valley 17-25, 25-20, 20-25, 25-18, 16-14; Eastside Christian def. Internaltion School of LA 22-25, 25-22, 25-22, 25-20, 22-25, 15-13.

See VOLLEYBALL on page 13.

# CIF SOUTHERN SECTION FORD 2017 GIRLS TEAM TENNIS PLAYOFF RESULTS

#### **DIVISION 1**

First Round: Corona del Mar Bye; Arroyo Grande 14, San Marco 4; San Marino 12, Valneica/Valencia 6; San Clemente 16, Santa Margarita 2; Palos Verdes 15, Harvard Westlake 3; Murrieta Valley 16, Aliso Niguel 2; Northwood 11, Newport Harbor 7; Arcadia 18, Camarillo 0; Campbell Hall 15, Westlake 3; West Ranch 13, Los Alamitos 5; Mira Costa 12, Cate 6; University 16, Sage Hill 2; Dana Hills 10, Mater Dei 8; Oaks Christian 9, Notre Dame/Sherman Oaks 9 (72-70); ML King 10, Troy 8; Peninsula Bye.

**Second Round:** Corona del Mar 16, Arroyo Grande 2; San Marino 11, San Clemente 7; Palos Verdes 12, Murrieta Valley 6; Arcadia 15, Northwood 3; Campbell Hall 16, West Ranch 2; University 15, Mira Costa 3; Dana Hills 12, Oaks Christian 6; Peninsula 14, ML King 4.

**Quarterfinals:** Corona del Mar 13, San Marino 5; Arcadia 10, Palos Verdes 8; University 9, Campbell Hall 9 (76-73); Peninsula 9, Dana Hills 9 (74-71).

**Semifinals:** Corona del Mar 10, Arcadia 8; University 12, Peninsula 6.

Final: Corona del Mar 13, University 5.

#### **DIVISION 2**

**Wild Card Round:** Burbank 12, Hart 6; Temecula Valley 18, Yucaipa 0; Santa Barbara 12, Viewpoint 6; Marlborough 11, Temple City 7.

First Round: Beckman 14, Laguna Beach 4; Sunny Hills 9, Cypress 9, (80-71); Poly/Riverside 10, Edison 8; Burbank 10, Dos Pueblos 8; El Dorado 14, Xavier Prep 4; Calabasas 10, South Torrance 8; Walnut 12, Temecula Valley 6; Santa MOnica 12, Santiago/Corona 6; Orange LUtheran 13, Palm Desert 5; Santa Barbara10, Simi Valley 8; La Canada 10, Ayala 8; Great Oak 15, St. Margaret;s 3; Los Osos 16, San Luis Obispo 2; Valencia/Placentia 12, Thacher 6; Oak Park 13, Orcutt Academy 5; Marlborough 9, Foothill 9 (83-72).

**Second Round:** Beckman 15, Sunny Hills 3; Burbank 12, Poly 6; El Dorado 11, Calabasas 7; SAnta Monica 11, Walnut 7; Orange Lutheran 12, Santa Barbara 6; Great Oak 12, La Canada 6; Los Osos 11, Valencia 4; Marlblorough 12, Oak Park 6.

Quarterfinals: Beckman 15, Burbank 3; SAnta MOnica 10, El Dorado 8, Orange Lutheran 13, Great Oak 5; Marlborough 11, Los Osos 7.

**Semifinals:** Beckman 12, Santa Monica 6; Marlborough 11, Orange LUtheran 7.

Final: Beckman 14, Marlborough 4.

#### **DIVISION 3**

Wild Card Round: Atascadero 12, Santa Ynez 6; Poly/Pasadena 13, Fullerton 5; Diamond Bar 14, La Quinta/La Quinta 4; Pacifica/Garden Grove 9, Trabuco Hills (82-75); Centennial/Corona 14, Palm Springs 4.

First Round: Crescenta Valley 12, Marymount 6; Atascadero 14, Warren 4; Garden Grove 12, Redlands East Valley 6; Poly/Pasadena 9, Cerritos 9 (74-72); Brentwood 11, Rio Mesa 7; Mayfied 11, La Serna 7; Wilson/Long Beach 10, Capistrano Valley 8; Canyon/Anaheim 13, Diamond Bar 5; Poly/Long Beach 14, Pacifica 4; Wilson/Hacienda Heights 12, Brea Olinda 6; Chadwick 11, El Segundo 7; Chaminade13, Cabrillo 5; Claremont 10, Tesoro 8; Serrano 15, Calvary Chapel/Santa Ana 3; Oxford Academy 10, Alhambra 8; Redlands 13, Centennial 5.

Second Round: Crescenta Valley 15, Atascadero 3; Poly 10, Garden Grove 8; Brentwood 12, Mayfield 6; Canyon 9, Wilson 9 (); Poly 13, Wilson 5; Chadwick 10, Chaminade 8; Claremont 17, Serrano 1; Redlands 12, Oxford Academy 6. Quarterfinals: Crescenta Valley 14, Poly 4; Brentwood 9, Canyon 9 (77-72); Chadwick 9, Poly (69-63); Redlands 11, Claremont 7.

**Semifinals:** Crescenta Valley 12, Brentwood 6; Redlands 14, Chadwick 4.

Final: Redlands 10, Crescenta Valley 8

#### **DIVISION 4**

Wild Card Round: Rowland 14, Charter Oak 4; Arlington 14, CAMS; Rancho Cucamonga 14, Citrus Valley 4; Gahr 10, Burroughs/Ridgecrest 8; St. Lucy;s 9, La Quinta/Westminster 9 (); North Torrance 12, Paso Robles 6; Le Lycee 10, San Jacinto 8; Hueneme 11, Mayfair 7; Louisville 11, Lakewood 7; JW North 13, Linfield Christian 5; Bolsa Grande 12, Estancia 6; Bellflower 9, Chino 9 (67-66); El Rancho 9, San Dimas 9 (); Foothill Technology 11, Morro Bay 7; Glendale 11, Mark Keppel 7.

First Round: Elsinore 16, Rowland 2; Arlington 13, Webb 5; Rancho Cucamonga 13, AGBU/Canoga Park 5; SAnta Fe 11, The Archer School for Girls 7; Arroyo 16, Gahr 2; St. Lucy's 13, Magnolia 5; North Torrance 12, Bishop Montgomery 6; Rancho Mirage 16, Le Lycee 2; Hemet 15, Hueneme 13; Louisville 9, Downey 9 (77-73); Alta Loma 11; JW North 7; Bolsa Grande 12, Oakwood 6; Rosemead 15, Bellflower 3; Quartz Hill 10, El Rancho 8; Foothill Technology 13, Pacifica/Oxnard 5; Glendale 17, Gladstone 1. Second Round: Elsinore 14, Arlington 4; Rancho

**Second Round:** Elsinore 14, Arlington 4; Rancho Cucamonga 15, Santa Fe 3; St. Lucy;s 12, Arroyo 6; Rancho Mirage 11, North Torrance 7; Hemet

13, Louisville 5; Alta Loma 14, Bolsa Grande 4; Rosemead 9, Quartz Hill 9 (78-75); Glendale 11, Foothill Technology.

Quarterfinals: Elsinore 10, Rancho Cucamonga 8; Rancho Mirage 12, St. Lucy's 6; Hemet 9, Alta Loma 9 (79-78); Glendale 16, Rosemead 2. Semifinals: Rancho Mirage 11, Elsinore 7; Glendale 12, Hemet 6

Final: Glendale 10, Rancho Mirage 8.

#### **DIVISION 5**

Wild Card Round: Beaumont 17, Coachella Valley 1; La Mirada 9, Santa Paula 9 (); Montebello 15, de Toledo 3; La Salle 11, Highland 7; Oak Hills 13, Granite Hills 5; El Monte 17, San Gorgonio 1; Woodcrest Christian 15, Big Bear 3; Jurupa Valley 17, Adelanto 1; Century 16, St. Joseph/Lakewood 2; Paloma Valley 13, Grand Terrace 5; Vista Del Lago 12, La Puente 6; Montclair 15, Azusa 3; Arroyo Valley 15, Garey 3; Segerstrom 13, Valley Christian/Cerritos 5; Eastside 14, Ontario Christian 4; Nordhoff 13, Coast Union 5; Hillcrest 14, Twentynine Palms 4; Westminster 17, Lancaster 1; Katella 12, Fairmont Prep 6; Temescal Canyon 14, Ontario 4.

First Round: Maranatha 10, Beaumont 8; Laguna Blanca 9, La Mirada 9 (88-69); Montebello 15, Edgewood 3; La Salle 10, Oak Hills 8; El MOnte 16, Duarte 2; Woodcrest Christian 10, Jurupa Valley 8; Paloma Valley 12, Century 6; Orange 18, Vista Del Lago 0; Montclair 12, Silverado 6; St. Bonaventure 10, Arroyo Valley 8; Norte Vista 10, Segerstrom 8; Eastside 15, Nordhoff 3; Aquinas 11, Hillcrest 7; Westminster 10, Rim of the World 8; Katella 12, Summit 6; Temescal Canyon 14, Rubidoux 4.

**Second Round:** Maranatha 9, Laguna Blanca 9 (78-70); Montebello 10, La Salle 8; El Monte 14, Woodcrest Christian 4; Orange 10, Paloma Valley 8; Montclair 11, St. Bonaventure 7; Norte Vista 9, Eastside 9 (84-72); Westminster 12, Aquinas 6; Temescal Canyon 11, Katella 7.

**Quarterfinals:** Maranatha 10, Montebello 8; Orange 15, El Monte 3; Montclair 12, Norte Vista 6; Temescal Canyon 11, Westminster 7.

Final: Temescal Canyon 13, Orange 5.

# CIF SOUTHERN SECTION FORD 2017 GIRLS INDIVIDUAL TENNIS PLAYOFF RESULTS

#### **SINGLES**

First Round: Michell Zell (Foothill) def. Mikala Triplett (Dos Pueblos) 6-2, 6-1; Jordyn McBride (West RAnch) def. Sophie McKenzie (La Canada) 6-2, 6-2; Faith Pearson (Murrieta Valley) def. Delanie Dunkle (Arroyo Grande) default; Ashley Kua (Trinity Classical Acad.) def. Jourdan Wallace (Pasadena) 6-1, 6-1; Goldie La (Claremont) def. Alexis Golen (Oaks Christian) 2-6, 7-5, 6-3. Second Round: Cassie Wooten (Chadwick) def. Michelle Zell 4-6, 6-3, 6-1; Justine Dondonay (Alhambra) def. Courtney Swift (Dana Hills) 3-6, 6-4, 6-0; Rachelle Yang (Arcadia) def. Eryn Cauetano (St. Anthony) 6-1, 6-2; Danielle Willson (COrona del Mar) def. Jordyn McBride 6-1, 6-2; Lindsay Hung (San Clemente) def. Faith Pearson 6-2, 6-2); Yuka Perera (San Marcos) def. Ashley Kua 6-1. 6-1; Cami Brown (University) def. Ryan Peus (Peninsula) 6-3, 6-3; Vivian Chang (Santa Monica) def. Goldie La 6-3, 6-1.

Quarterfinals: Casie Wooten def. Justine Dondonay 6-3, 6-3; Danielle Willson def. Rachelle Yang 6-2, 6-1; Lindsay Hung def. Yuka Perea 6-3, 6-3; Vivian Cheng def. Cami Brown 6-2, 6-1. Semifinals: Casie Wooten def. Danielle Willson 6-3, 6-1; Lindsay Hung def. Vivian Chang 6-2, 6-3.

**Final:** Danielle Willson, def. Lindsay Hung 6-2, 6-3.

#### **DOUBLES**

First Round: Hailey Hairrell/Lauren Nguyen (Los Alamitos) def. Torrey Mateljan/Maxelle Bernie (Poly/Riverside) 6-4, 6-4; Katherine Wu/ Morgan Leong (Temple City) def. Katie Sunada/

Katie Hart (Palos Verdes) 4-6, 6-4, 7-6 (7-5); Audrey Vo/Olga Nagy (Mira Costa) def. MIchelle Hung/Nicole Condas (Sage Hill) 6-0. 7-6. 7-2; Jackie Cai/Carol Cai (Cate) def. Mae Phy/Sara Soderberg (Poly/LB) 6-1, 7-6, 8-6.

Second Round: Lauren Ko/Michell Deng (Arcadia) def. Hairrell/Nguyen 6-2, 6-3; Shaya Northup/Paulina Loredo (Corona del Mar) def. Maya Krishnasany/Isabella Francis (Ventura) 6-0, 6-4; Dana Mackensen/Emila Gorczyca (Dana Hills) def. Katie Hernandez/Natasha Hill (Mater Dei) 7-6 (4), 6-4; Rachel Wagner/Lisa Wagner (Campbell Hall) def. Wu/Leong 6-1, 6-3; Amanda Tabanera/Carlotta Nonnis-Marzano (Valencia/V) def. Vo/Nagy 6-0, 6-1; Annkia Bassey/Kristina Evloeva (Corona del Mar)

See TENNIS on page 15

# **CIF SOUTHERN SECTION FORD** 2017 BOYS WATER POLO PLAYOFF RESULTS

#### **DIVISION 1**

First Round: Mater Dei 8, Loyola 6; Newport Harbor 6, Santa Margarita 5, Oaks Christian 11, Huntington Beach 10; Harvard Westlake 9, Orange Lutheran 8, .

Semifinals: Mater Dei 9, Newport Harbor 3, Oaks Christian 8, Harvard Westlake 7.

Final: Mater Dei 13, Oaks Christian 9.

3rd & 4th Place: Newport Harbor 6, Harvard Westlake 4.

Consolation Round: Loyola 12, Santa Margarita 11; Orange Lutheran 17, Huntington Beach12. 5th & 6th Place: Orange Lutheran 13, Loyola 7. 7th & 8th Place: Santa Margarita 10, Huntington Beach 8.

#### **DIVISION 2**

Wild Card Round: Dana Hills 13, Santa Barbara 6. First Round: Foothill 14, Damien 7; Murrieta Valley 7, Aliso Niguel 6; Redlands East Valley 8, Palos Verdes 5; Laguna Beach 13, Dana Hills 6; Agoura 18, Hoover 7; Mira Costa 8, Ventura 5; San Clemente 14, Los Osos 9; Corona del Mar 12, Wilson/LB 2.

Quarterfinals: Foothill 10, Murrieta Valley 7; Redlands East Valley 6, Laguna Beach 5; Agoura 9, Mira Costa 6; Corona del Mar 12, San Clemente 8. Semifinals: Foothill 11, Redlands East Valley 8;

Corona del Mar 10, Agoura 7.

Final: Foothill 10, Corona del Mar 7.

#### **DIVISION 3**

First Round: Poly/Riverside Bye' Troy 8, Royal 5; Northwood 14, Malibu 11; Villa Park 13, Yucaipa 5; La Serna 12, Chino Hills 8; Righetti 14, Notre Dame/Sherman Oaks 13; El Segundo 14, Edison 12; Ayala Bye; Woodbridge 17, Segerstrom 8; Bonita 5, Arroyo Grande 3; Costa Mesa 9, VIsta Murrieta 8; Servite 15, Moorpark 9; Burroughs/ Burbank 12, Beckman 11; Dos Pueblos 16, Claremont 3; La Quinta/La Quinta15, Yorba Linda 6; Los Alamitos 14, Corona 9.

Second Round: Poly 14, Troy 6; Villa Park 8, Northwood 4; La Serna 10, Righetti 7; Ayala 11, El Segundo 9; Woodbridge 12, Bonita 3; Servite 13, Costa Mesa 10; Dos Pueblos 18, Burroughs 11; Los Alamitos 10, La Quinta 6.

Quarterfinals: Villa Park 10, Poly 9; La Serna 14, Ayala 12; Servite 10, Woodbridge 9; Dos Pueblos 12, Los Alamitos 11.

Semifinals: La Serna 10, Villa Park 7; Dos Pueblos 13, Servite 7.

Final: La Serna 9, Dos Pueblos 7.

## **DIVISION 4**

First Round: Peninsula 13, Poly/Long Beach 6; Sunny Hills 6, Schurr 5; Temple City Bye; Tesoro 10, Murrieta Mesa 9, Walnut Bye, Newbury Park 11, Millikan 8; Laguna Hills 9, Canyon/Anaheim 7; Xavier Prep 5, Crescenta Valley 4; Montebello Bye; South Pasadena 16, ML King 8; Santa Monica 11, Cypress 7; San Juan Hills Bye; Santiago/ Corona Bye; Westlake 13, Santa Ynez 8; Cerritos 15, JSerra 4; Redondo Union 13, San Dimas 4. Second Round: Peninsula 5, Sunny Hills 4; Temple City 13, Tesoro 12; Walnut 13, Newbury Park 8; Xavier Prep 7, Laguna Hills 4; South Pasadena 10, Montebello 7; Santa Monica 8, San Juan Hills 6; Santiago 8, Westlake 4; Redondo 11, Cerritos 10.

Quarterfinals: Temple City 13, Peninsula 12; Walnut 12, Xavier Prep 5; South Pasadena 9,

# SOUTHERN SECTION **FORD**

2017 BOYS' WATER POLO CHAMPIONS

**DIVISION 1 Mater Dei** 

**DIVISION 2 Foothill** 

**DIVISION 3** La Serna

**DIVISION 4 Redondo Union** 

**DIVISION 5** Temescal Canyon

**DIVISION 6** Pacifica/Garden Grove

> **DIVISION 7 Valley View**

Santa Monica 7; Redondo 6, Santiago 3.

Semifinals: Walnut 13, Temple City 10; Redondo 8, South Pasadena 6.

Final: Redondo Union 10, Walnut 7.

#### **DIVISION 5**

First Round: San Marino 14, El Dorado 9; Chadwick 10, Villanova Prep 8; Cajon 13, Lakeside 1; Don Lugo 22, Shadow Hills 4; Chaparral 15, Rowland 9; Carpinteria 10, San Luis Obispo 7; Chino 15, Brentwood 6; Arlington 15, Redlands 8; Temescal Canyon Bye; Ocean View 12, Wilson/ Hacienda Heights 6; Upland 10, Hemet 6; La Habra 10, Kennedy 9; Flintridge Prep 14, Atascadero 9; Alta Loma 7, Arcadia 5; Sage Hill 15, Glendora 7: Rio Mesa Bve.

Second Round: San Marino 15, Chadwick 9; Don Lugo 10, Cajon 9; Chaparral 15, Carpinteria 15; Chino 13, Arlington 11; Temescal Canyon 20, Ocean View 11; Upland 9, La Habra 7; Alta Loma 7, Flintridge Prep 5; Rio Mesa 7, Sage Hill 4.

Quarterfinals: Don Lugo 9, San Marino 6; Chino 11, Chaparral 10; Temescal Canyon 11, Upland 5; Rio Mesa 10, Alta Loma 3.

Semifinals: Don Lugo 15, Chino 11; Temescal Canvon 13. Rio Mesa 10.

Final: Temescal Canyon 10, Don Lugo 7.

**DIVISION 6** 

First Round: Pacifica/Garden Grove Bye; La Sierra Bye; Cabrillo/Lompoc 14, Estancia 7; California Bye; Camarillo 8, Oxnard 6; Webb 10, Glendale 9; Whittier 15, Arroyo Valley 2; Temecula Valley 23, Nogales 7; Beaumont Bye; JW North 9, Katella 6, Poly/Pasadena 18, Sierra Vista 11: Nordhoff 14, Granite HIlls 4; Foothill Technology 10, Downey 6; Los Altos 11, Chaffey 10; Elsinore 13, Tustin 7; Buena Park 15, Los Amigos 6;

Second Round: Pacifica 13, La Sierra 212; California 12, Cabrillo 9; Camarillo 7, WEbb 6; Temecula Valley 14, Whittier 9; Beaumont 13, JW North 10; Nordhoff 11, Poly/Pasadena 7; Foothill Technology 10, Los Altos 6; Buena Park 8, Elsinore 5.

Quarterfinals: Pacifica 7, California 6; Temecula Valley 10. Camarillo 5: Beaumont 18. Nordhoff 11: Beuna Park 9, Foothill Technology 6.

Semifinals: Pacifica 10, Temecula Valley 6; Buena Park 15, Beaumont 13.

Final: Pacifica/Garden Grove 9, Buena Park 8.

#### **DIVISION 7**

Wild Card Round: El Rancho 9, Paramount 6; Morro Bay 10, Pacifica/Oxnard 6; La Mirada 12, Santa Ana 6; West Valley 8, La Quinta/Westminster 2; Ramona 17, Tahquitz 2; Pioneer 5, Rancho Aalmitos 3, Beverly Hills 20, Mark Keppel 1; Baldwin Park 14, Edgewood 4.

First Round: El Rancho 27, Moreno Valley 3; Palm Springs 6, Morro Bay 5; Hillcrest 12, La Mirada 11; Fontana 9, West Valley 6; Savanna 9, Ramona 5; Pioneer 14, San Bernardino 9; Beverly HIIIs 14, San Bernardino 9; Valley View 13, Baldwin Park 7.

Quarterfinals: El Rancho 12, Palm Springs 6; HIllcrest 9, FOntana 7; Pioneer 7, Savanna 4; Valley View 15, Beverly Hills 10.

Semifinals: El RAncho 9, Hillcrest 7, Valley View 9, Pioneer 6.

Final: Valley View 14, El Rancho 13.

#### EXECUTIVE COMM

(Continued from page 5)

- 2. October 16, 2017 Athletic Administrators Summit, Sheraton Fairplex Hotel and Conference Center, Pomona, California, 7:30 a.m.
- 3. October 18, 2017 CIF Southern Section Hall of Fame/Distinguished Service Luncheon, The Grand, Long Beach, California, 12:00 p.m.
  4. January 13, 2017 – CIF Southern Section Executive Committee Meeting,
- Mission Inn, Riverside, California, 9:30 a.m.

  5. January 24, 2017 CIF Southern Section Council Meeting, The Grand, Long Beach, California, 9:00 a.m..
- B. SUGGESTED AGENDA ITEMS

sted agenda items for the next meeting.

# There were no suggested 10. ADJOURNMENT

A motion and second for adjournment were made and a unanimous vote to adjourn was entered at 4:17 p.m.

Submitted by Executive Assistant

Approved by:

Commissioner of Athletics

# 2017 CIF SOUTHERN SECTION FORD BOYS/GIRLS CROSS COUNTRY RESULTS

### **DIVISION 1 - BOYS**

#### **Team**

- 1. Great Oak 86
- 2. Roosevelt 145
- 3. Dana Hills 150
- 4. Loyola 175
- 5. El Toro 221

#### Individual

- 1. Shane Bissell, Loyola 14:39.4
- Colin Fitzgerald, Crescenta Valley 14:39.9
- 3. Tyler Spencer, Roosevelt 14:41.6
- Carlos Carvajal, Great Oak 14:46.4
- 5. Jagdeep Chahal, Burroughs/B 14:46.8

#### **DIVISION 2 - BOYS**

#### Team

- 1. Claremont 108
- 2. Saugus 141
- 3. West Ranch 157
- 4. Sunny Hills- 187
- 5. Paso Robles 194

#### Individual

- 1. Ethan Danforth, Canyon/CC- 14:50.2
- 2. Elias Opsahl, Redlands East Vly- 14:53.2
- 3. Alexis Garcia, Newport Harbor 14:57.2
- 4. Preston Pope, West Ranch 15:02.8
- 5. Isaish Seidman, West Ranch 15:03.2

#### **DIVISION 3 - BOYS**

#### Team

- 1. West Torrance 77
- 2. Palos Verdes 118
- 3. Whittier 176
- 4. St. John Bosco 180
- 5. Brea Olinda 193

#### Individual

- 1. Kevin Ramos, Rubidoux 14:55.8
- 2. Brett Beattie, Buena 15:07.3
- 3. Nicolas Mijarez, Whittier- 15:19.2
- 4. Ian Howard, Santa Margarita 15:19.4
- 5. Osvaldo Cervantes, Nogales 15:19.5

# **DIVISION 4 - BOYS**

## Team

- 1. Cathedral 63
- 2. Laguna Beach 137
- 3. Foothill Technology 148
- 4. El Segundo 173
- 5. Bishop Amat 199

#### Individual

- 1. Anthony Grover, JSerra 15:22.9
- 2. Peter Herold, JSerra 15:29.7
- 3. Tyriq Granillo, Cathedral 15:35.6
- 4. Alexander Cantu. Cathedral- 15:38.7
- 5. Garrett Miller, Crean Lutheran- 15:39.8

## **DIVISION 5 - BOYS**

#### Team

- 1. Thacher 82
- 2. Valley Christian/Cerritos 117
- 3. Flintridge Prep 122
- 4. St. Margaret's 139
- Campbell Hall 189

## Individual

- 1. Evan Pattinelli, Flintridge Prep 14:51.9
- 2. Xian Shively, Poly/P 14:56.2
- 3. Jamie Morelandm, Campbell Hall- 15:28.3
- 4. Ryan Vreeke, Valley Chr/C 15:30.6
- 5. Ford Shaper, Thacher 15:31.0

#### **DIVISION 1 - GIRLS**

#### Team

- 1. Great Oak 56
- 2. Vista Murrieta 138
- 3. Arcadia 164
- 4. El Toro- 207
- 5. ML King 230

#### Individual

- 1. Fatima Cortes, Great Oak- 16:27.1
- 2. Chloe Arriaga, Walnut 16:43.8
- 3. Lauren Peurifoy, ML King- 16:51.7
- 4. Tori Gaitan, Great Oak 16:56.8
- 5. Emily Virtue, Burroughs/Bur 16:58.5

#### **DIVISION 2 - GIRLS**

#### Team

- Claremont 77
- 2. Saugus 104
- 3. Capistrano Valley 110
- 4. Serrano 133
- 5. Canyon/Anaheim 173

#### Individual

- 1. Haley Herberg, Capistrano Valley 16:20.9
- 2. Mariah Castillo. Saugus 16:28.4
- 3. Sara Leonard, Canyon/Anaheim 16:59.0
- 4. Kelli Hines, Mission Viejo 17:10.8
- 5. Sydney Hwang, Claremont 17:18.2

#### **DIVISION 3 - GIRLS**

#### Team

- 1. Laguna Hills 102
- 2. Palos Verdes 130
- 3. Oak Park 149
- 4. Esperanza 188
- 5. Corona del Mar 198

#### Individual

- . Syliva Cruz-Albrecht Oak Park 17:33.8
- 2. Sarah Shulze, Oak Park 17:39.7
- 3. Lucina Vincent, El Dorado 17:58.4
- Grace Catena, Palos Verdes 18:10.0
   Samantha Steman, Palos Verdes 18:11.4

# **DIVISION 4 - GIRLS**

## Team

- 1. Foothill Technology 70
- 2. Mayfield- 100
- 3. El Segundo 133
- 4. Bishop Amat 134
- 5. La Canada 159

## Individual

- 1. Lane Claudia, Malibu 16:32.5
- 2. Audrey Suarez, Mayfield 17:34.5
- Kayley Bond, La Canada 17:56.2
- 4. McKenna Smith, Mayfield 17:57.0
- 5. Diane Molina, Costa Mesa 18:01.0

## **DIVISION 5 - GIRLS**

#### Team

- 1. Flintridge Prep 55
- 2. St. Margaret's 101
- 3. Sage Hill- 162
- 4. Thacher 174
  5. Pomona Catholic 201

## Individual

- 1. Mia Barnett, Village Christian- 17:43.1
- Sophie Gitlin, Flintridge Prep 17:59.0
- 3. Andi Carnell, St. Margaret's 18:00.7
- 4. Sasha Codiga, Flintridge Prep 18:06.55. Lily Miller, Webb 18:10.1

# **VOLLEYBALL**

(Continued from page 11)

**Quarterfinals:** Lone Pine def. Orange Vista 25-18, 15-25, 25-14, 25-18; Carnegie def. Vistor Valley Christian 25-14, 16-25, 30-28, 25-16; Excelsior Charter def. Pacifica Christian/OC 25-9, 25-17, 22-25, 27-25; Sherman Indian deff. Eastside Christian 25-18, 16-25, 26-24, 25-21.

Semifinals: Carnegie def. Lone Pine 25-6, 25-21, 25-9; Excelfior Charter def. Sherman Indian 25-19, 25-9, 25-17.

Final: Carnegie/Riverside def. Excelsior Charter 25-12, 25-10, 25-15.

# TENNIS

(Continued from page 12)

6-2, 6-1; Arianna Starvropoulos/Jordan Hickey (Marlborough) 6-0, 6-3; Emily Ackerman/Chloe Bendetti (Oaks Christian def. Cai/Cai 6-4, 6-3. **Quarterfinals:** Ko/Deng def. Northrup/Loredo 6-0, 6-4; Wagner/Wagner def. Mackensen/Gorczyca 6-3, 6-2; Tabanera/Nonnis Marxano def. Bassey/Evloeva 0-6, 6-4, 6-4; Ackerman/Bendetti

def. Starvropoulos/Hickey 5-7, 6-1, 6-3.

Semifinals: Ko/Deng def. Wagner/Wagner 7-5, 6-1; Tebabera/Nonnis-Marzano 7-6 (5), 6-1.

Final: Lauren Ko/ Michelle Deng (Arcadia) def. Emily Ackerman/Chloe Bendetti (Oaks Christian) 6-1. 6-3.

# CIF SOUTHERN SECTION PARTNERS

Proudly Supporting Southern California Student-Athletes



# SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA FORD DEALERS

Title Sponsor and Official Automobile of the CIF Southern Section - FORD Championships











Official Ball of the CIF-88

Official Home of the CIF-SS FORD Championships

Official Event Merchandise www.elftshirts.com.

Official Baseball of the CIF-SS

Official Water Polo Ball of the CIP-SS







Official Partner of the CIF-SS



of the CIP-88.



Official Source for CIF-55 Scores & Stats



Supporting Partner of the CIF-SS



Supporting Partner of the CIF-88



Official Partner of the CIF



Supporting Partner of the CIT-SS



Supporting Partner of the CIF









Official Badminton Supplier of the CIF-88

